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Statement of Financial Position

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2012 Restated
2011
Assets
Current Assefs
Inventories 8 7,076,011 51,566,543
Operating lease asset 738,266 777,879
Receivables from exchange transactions 9 13,158,003 6,252,507
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 10 8,471,830 20,920,434
VAT receivable 11 3,566,924 17,676,711
Consumer debtors 12 50,320,199 44,422 097
Long term receivables 7 25,298 24,261
Cash and cash equivalents 13 126,699,467 70,003,701
210,056,098 211,644,133
Non-Current Assets
investment property 2 87,822,500 87,989,228
Property, plant and equipment 3  3,065,756,551 3,024,360,542
intangible assels 4 3,547,265 2,837,625
Other financial assets 5 5,691,303 1,261,697
Long term receivables 7 126,072 147,060
3,162,943,691 3,116,596,152
Non-current assets held for sale 14 22,823,298 27,802,162
Total Assets 3,395,823,087 3,356,142,447
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 15 16,423,592 14,217,516
Finance lease obligation 16 997,769 -
Payables from exchange transactions 19 71,919,620 80,873,018
Consumer deposits 20 31,206,423 18,362,889
Retirement benefit obligation 6 1,943,000 1,777,000
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 17 7,975,247 9,954,951
Provisions 18 5,610,667 4,694,037
136,076,318 129,879,411
Non-Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 15 340,580,681 247,081,490
Retirement benefit obligation 6 71,662,000 61,660,000
Provisions 18 39,534,817 35,754,187
451,677,498 344,495,677
Total Liabilities 587,753,816 474,375,088

Net Assets

Net Assets

Reserves

Revaluation reserve
Housing development fund
Accumulated surplus

Total Net Assets

2,808,069,271

2,881,767,359

315,176,077
1,919,828

315,176,077
1,912,522

2,490,973,366 2,564,678,760

2,808,069,271 2,881,767,359
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Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2012 Restated
2011
Revenue
Property rates 21 136,510,901 128,737,266
Service charges 22 405,669,978 344,977,157
Property rates - penalties imposed and collection charges 995,095 853,371
Rental of facilities and equipment 6,731,614 6,531,785
Public contributions and donations 14,300,171 21,561,318
Fines 5,278,097 5,468,996
Licences and permits 1,786,476 1,710,778
Government grants and subsidies 23 95,422,704 82,469,589
Agency services 1,907,238 1,790,255
Other income 24 17,228,746 17,071,216
Interest received 30 9,210,119 6,168,274
Total Revenue 695,041,139 617,340,005
Expenditure
Employee costs 27 (207,938,265) {187,332,817)
Remuneration of councillors 28 (6,717,244)  (4,839,707)
Depreciation and amortisation 31 (100,668,631) (103,346,664)
Impairment loss/ Reversal of impairments 32 (3,111,159)  (3,430,555)
Finance costs 33 (31,727,084) (19,372,688)
Debt impairment 29 100,129 (4,805,546)
Repairs and maintenance (64,844,769) (58,239,214)
Bulk purchases 37 (126,669,077) (101,683,452)
Contracted services 35 (24,777,215) (20,253,361)
Grants and subsidies paid 36 (28,454,141) (23,619,539)
General Expenses 25 (167,555,412) (116,277,775)

Total Expenditure

Gain on disposal of assets
Fair value adjustments

{Deficit) surplus for the year

(762,272,868) (643,201,318)

2,256,088 13,170,653
(8,729,753) 22,425,882

(73,705,394) 9,735,222
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Revaluation Housing Total reserves Accumulated Total net
reserve development surplus assets

Figures in Rand fund
Opening balance as previously reported 315,176,077 1,918,404 317,094,481 2,537,045,809 2,854,140,290
Adjustments
Correction of errors - - - 19,029,447 19,029,447
Prior year adjustments - - - {1,131,718)  {1,131,718)
Balance at July 01, 2010 as restated 315,176,077 1,918,404 317,094,481 2,554,943,538 2,872,038,019
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year - - - 9,735,222 9,735,222
Transfer to Housing development fund - (5,882) (5,882) - (5,882)
Total changes - (5,882) (5,882) 9,735,222 9,729,340
Opening balance as previously reported 315,176,077 1,912/522 317,088,599 2,497,044,508 2,814,133,107
Adjustments
Correction of errors - - - 68,318,825 68,318,825
Prior year adjustments - - - (684,573) (684,573)
Balance at July 01, 2011 as restated 315,176,077 1,912,522 317,088,599 2,564,678,760 2,881,767,359
Changes in net asseis
Surplus for the year - - - {73,705,394) (73,705,394)
Transfer to Housing development fund - 7,306 7,306 - 7,306
Total changes - 7,306 7,306 (73,705,384) (73,698,088}
Balance at June 30, 2012 315,176,077 1,919,828 317,095,905 2,490,973,366 2,808,069,271

Note(s)
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Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2012 Restated
2011

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Taxation 138,756,438 124,220,898

Sale of goods and services 413,665,141 345,318,721

Grants 93,443,000 90,502,524

Interest income 9,210,119 6,168,274

Other receipts 64,634,577 57,855,867

Movement in housing development fund 7,306 -
719,706,581 624,066,284

Payments

Employee costs

Suppliers

Finance costs

Other payments

Movement in housing development fund

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds froem sale of investment property

Purchase of other infangible assets

Proceeds from sale of other intangible assets
Movement in financial assets

Movement in long term receivables

Movement in non-current assets held for sale

Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Movement in other financial liabilities
Movement In finance Isases

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increasef(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

38

Baodh N oW

13

(197,870,265) (180,482,817)
(126,669,077) (101,683,452)
(31,669,076) (19,372,688)
(251,653,598) (251,553,156)

. (5,882)

{607,862,016) (553,097,995)

111,844,565

70,968,289

(162,366,177} (150,378,527)

13,721,879 21,429.215
- 2,009,272
(928,401}  (118,275)

- 8,089
(4,429,606)  (1,261,697)
19,951 29,063
2,188,527 17,137,128

(151,793,827) (111,145,732}

95,705,267  80,557.836
939,761 -
96,645,028 80,557,836
56,605,766 40,380,393
70,003,701 29,623,308
126,609,467 70,003,701
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Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recegnised Accounting
Practice (GRAP} including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention unless specified otherwise. They are presented in Scuth African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed below.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make esfimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Impairment testing

Accounting Policy 1.5, 1.8 and 1.10 on Impairment of financial assets, cash generating assets and non-cash generating assets
describes the process followed to determine the value with which financial assets should be impaired. In making the estimation
of the impairment, the management of the municipality considers the detailed criteria of impairment of financial assets as sst
out in 1AS 39: Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement. The management of the municipality is satisfied that
impairment of financial assets recorded during the year is appropriate. Details of the impairment loss calculation are provided
in Note 32 to the Annual Financial Statements.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

As described in Accounting Policy 1.3, the municipality depreciates its property, plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets over the estimated useful lives of the assets, taking into account the residual values of the assets at the end
of their useful lives, which is determined when the assets are available for use. The useful lives and residual values of the
assets are based on industry knowledge.

Defined benefit plan liabilities

As described in Accounting Policy 1.11, the municipality obtains actuarial valuations of its defined benefit plan liabilities. The
defined benefit obligations of the municipality that were identified are Post-retirement Health Benefit Obligations and Long
service Awards. The estimated liabifities are recorded in accordance with the requirements of IAS 18. Details of the liabilities
and the key assumptions made by the actuaries in estimating the liabilities are provided in Notes 6 and 18 to the Annual
Financial Statements,

Revenue recognition

Accounting Policy 1.13 on Revenue from Exchange Transactions and Accounting Policy 1.14 on Revenue from Non-exchange
Transactions describes the conditions under which revenue will be recorded by the management of the municipality.

In making their judgement, management considered the detailed criteria for the recognition of revenue as set out in GRAP 9;
Revenue from Exchange Transactions and, in particular, whether the municipality, when goods are sold, had transferred to the
buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and when services is rendered, whether the service has been
rendered. The management of the municipality is satisfied that recognition of the revenue in the current year is appropriate.
Financial assets and Habilities

The classification of financial assets and financial liabifities is based on judgement by management,

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions and when measuring contingent liabilities as

set out in notes 18 and 40 respectively. Provisions are discounted where the effect of discounting is material using actuarial
valuations.
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Accounting Policies

1.2 Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both, rather than for:

. use in the production or supply of goods or services or for

+  administrative purposes, or

*  sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Owner-occupied property is property held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Fair vatue

Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects market conditions at the reporting date.

A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net surplus or deficit for the pericd in which it arises.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property is the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of retirement or disposal.

Compensation from third parties for investment property that was impaired, lost or given up is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the compensation becomes receivable.

Property interests held under operating leases are classified and accounted for as investment property in the following
circumstances:;

When classification is difficult, the criteria used to distinguish investment property from owner-occupied property and from
property held for sale in the ordinary course of business, are as follows:

*  All properties held to earn market-related rentals or for capital appreciation or both and that are not used for
administrative purposes and that will not be sold within the next 12 months are classified as investment Properties.

*  Land held for a currently undetermined future use.

. A building owned and leased out under cne or more operating leases.

*  Leased properties that are held to provide a social {community) service or that are necessary for employees to
perform their job functions, but which also generates rental revenue are not seen as investment properties. The
rental revenue generated is incidental to the purposes for which the property is held.

* A building that is vacant but is held to be leased out under one or more operating leases.

1.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured af cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the assst to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the municipality. Trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. The cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and removing the
asset and restoring the site on which it is located.

Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the assel(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
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Accounting Policies

1.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

i.and and huildings are carried at revalued amount based on municipal valuations, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed by external independent valuers
with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair
value at the reporting date. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation Is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Any increase in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The
increase is recognised in surplus or deficit fo the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in surplus or deficit.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or deficit in the current period.
The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in
respect of that asset.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly fo retained
earnings when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.

The usefui lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Useful life in years
Infrastructure

. Roads and paving 3-60
. Pedestrian malis 25-80
. Electricity 3-60
] Water 5-100
. Sewerage 10 - 860
. Housing 30
Community

. improvements 5-30
. Recreational facilities 5-30
. Security 5-15
Other properiy, plant and equipment

. Buildings 5-30
. Specialist vehicles 4-10
o Other vehicles 4-10
. Office squipment 3-15
. Furniture and fittings 3-15
. Watercraft 4-10
. Bins and containers 10-15
. Specialised plant and equipment 3-15
. Other plant and equipment 3-15

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date, If
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless
expectations differ from the previous estimate.

items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of propetrty, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
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Accounting Policies

1.3 Property, plant and equipment {contfinued)

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

Incomplete construction work is stated at historical cost. Depreciation only commences when the asset is available for use.
1.4 Intangible assets

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it:
. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged,
either individually or together with a related contract, assets or i;ablhty, or
+  arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardiess whether those rights are transferable or separate
from the municipality or from other rights and obligations.

An intangible asset arising from development {(or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
. it is technically feasible o complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.

there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

there is an ability to use or sell it.

it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.

there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the

asset.

* the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on ali relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amorlisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful fife after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that
the asset may be impaired. As a resuit the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over
its useful life.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Useful life
Computer software, other 2-5

1.5 Heritage assets

Class of heritage assets means a grouping of heritage assets of a similar nature or function in an municipality’s operations that
is shown as a single item for the purpose of disclosure in the annual financial statements.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire an asset at the
time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognised in
accordance with the specific requirements of other Standards of GRAP.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, sclentific, technological or artistic significance
and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations.

An inalienable item is an asset that an municipality is required by law or otherwise to retain indefinitely and cannot be disposed
of without consent.

Recognition

The municipality recognises a heritage asset as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the asset will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

9
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Accounting Policies

1.5 Heritage assets (continued)
Initial measurement
Heritage assets are measured at cost.

Where a heritage asset is acquired through a non-excharge transaction, its cost is measured at its fair value as at the date of
acquisition.

Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets is carried at its cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment

The municipality assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that it may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount or the recoverable service amount of the heritage asset.

Transfers
Transfers from heritage assets are only made when the particular asset no longer meets the definition of a heritage asset.
Derecognition

The municipality derecognises heritage asset on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service potential are
expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the heritage asset. Such difference is recognised in surplus or deficit when the
heritage asset is derecognised.

1.6 Financial instruments
Classification

The municipality classifies financial assets and financial liabilities info the following categories:
. Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit - designated

Held-to-maturity investment

Loans and receivables

Available-for-sale financial assets

Finangcial liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit - designated

Financial liabilities measured al amortised cost

& &4 & o =

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place at initial
recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis, except for derivatives and financial assets designated as at fair
value through surplus or deficit, which shall not be classified out of the fair value through surplus or deficit category.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the municipality becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the
instruments.

The municipality classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not
determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement of the instrument.

10
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Accounting Policies

1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial instruments designated as at fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that meet either of the following conditions:
. they are classified as held for trading; or
. upon initial recognition they are designated as at fair value through the Statement of Financial Performance.

They are subsequently measured at fair value at the statement of financial position date with the profit or loss being recognised
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Financial instruments designated as available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale and comprises of
cash and equity instruments held in shares. They are included under current assets in the statement of financial position and
are initlally and subsequently measured at fair value at the statement of financial position date, except for investments in equity
instruments that do not have quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, which
are measured af cost.

Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in surplus or deficit
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor wilf enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and defauit or delinquency in payments {more than 30 days overdue)
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying ameunt and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the deficit is
recognised in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
operating expenses in surplus or deficit.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convettible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially
and subsequently recorded at fair value.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash with bank, net of bank
overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility utilised. Finance charges on bank overdrafis are expensed as incurred.

1"



Overstrand Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2012

Accounting Policies

1.6 Financial instruments {continued}
Held to maturity
These financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus direct transaction costs,

At subsequent reporting dates these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any
impairment loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts. An impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when thers
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the investment's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the investment's recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial assets that the municipality has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of contractual agreements entered into. Trade and other payables
are stated at their nominal value. There are two main categories of Financial Liabilities, the classification determining how they
are measured. Financial liabilities may be measured at:

. Fair value through profit or loss; or

. Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Al financial liabilities including frade and other payables, are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Financial liabilities include borrowings, other non-current fiabilities (excluding provisions) and trade and other payables
{excluding provisions). Interest-bearing external loans and bank overdrafis are recorded net of direct issue costs. Finance
charges, including premiums payable, are accounted for on an accrual basis.

Derecognition
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
where:
e therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
. the municipality has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either
- has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
- has neither transferred nor retained substantially ali the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

Where the municipalily has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of
the municipality's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the municipality could be required to repay. Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or
purchased option (inciuding a cash-settled aption or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the municipality’s
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the municipality may repurchase, except that in the case of a
written put option {including a cash-settied option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the
municipality's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise
price.

Financial liabilities

A financial iiability is derecognised when the obligation under the fability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The municipality assesses at each statement of financial position date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired,

Initially Accounts Receivable are valued at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. An estimate is made for doubtful debt based on past default experience of all outstanding amounts at year-end. Bad
debts are written off the year in which they are identified as imecoverable. Amounts receivable within 12 months from the date
of reporting are classified as current.

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there Is objective evidence that the municipality will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the criginal terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the assel's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

Consumer Debtors are stated at cost less a provision for bad debts. The provision is made so that the recoverability of
Consumer Debtors is assessed individually and then collectively after grouping the assets in financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics. Government accounts are not provided for as such accounts are regarded as receivable.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

With the exception of Available-for-Sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Financial Performance to the extent that the
carrying amount of the investment, at the date the impairment is reversed, does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of Avaitable-for-Sale equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised through profit or loss are not
reversed through the Statement of Financial performance. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised directly in equity.

Cn disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited
to the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.7 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A fease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both fand and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.
Finance leases - lessor

The municipality recognises finance lease receivables as assets on the statement of financial position. Such assets are
presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease.

Finance revenue is recognised based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of refurn on the municipality’s net
investment in the finance lease.
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1.7 Leases {continued)

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the .

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance
of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.8 Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, then
their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
. distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
. consurnption in the production process of goods fo be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
relaied revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or
refated services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the wrile-down or loss occurs, The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Water and purified effluent are valued at purified cost insofar as it is stored and controlled in reservoirs at year-end,

Unsold properties are valued at the fower of cost and net realisable value on a weighted average cost basis. Direct costs are
accumulated for each separately identifiable development. Costs also include a proportion of overhead costs.

1.9 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is
available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The gain or loss on the eventual sale of non-current assets held for sale is included in the Statement of Financial Performance

as gain or loss on sale of assets. The gain or loss on the eventual sale of non-current assets held for sale, is calculated on the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the individual asset.
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1.10 Impairment of cash-generating assets

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the asset's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial pesition after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
ldentification
When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be impaired.
if any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Value in use

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its usefu life,

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the municipality estimates the future cash inflows and outfiows to be derived
from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the municipality applies the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows.

1.11 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an assel, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the asset's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair value less costs o sell and its value in use.
Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be
impaired. if any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Value in use

Value in use of an asset is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential.

1.12 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of shert-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the

service is rendered and are not discounted.

The liability for isave pay is based on the total accrued leave days at year end and is shown as a payable in the Statement of
Financial Position.

The municipality recognises the expected cost of performance bonuses only when the municipality has a present legal or
constructive obligation to make such payment and a reliable estimate can be made.
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1.12 Employee benefits (continued)
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the municipality pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
municipality has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets o pay
all employees the benefits relating to service in the current or prior periods,

The municipality's contributions to the defined contfribution funds are established in terms of the rufes governing those plans.
Contributions are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period in which the service is rendered by the
relevant employees. The municipality has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Defined benefit plans
For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected credit method.
Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan.

The municipality contributes to various National- and Provincial-administered Defined Benefit Pians on behalf of its qualifying
employees. These funds are multi-employer funds (refer to Note 6 of the Annual Financiat Statements for details). The
contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against revenue in the year they become
payable. These defined benefit funds are actuarially valued bi-annually on the Projected Unit Credit Method basis. Deficits are
recovered through lump sum payments or increased future contributions on a proportional basis from all participating
municipalities.

Other post retirement obligations

The municipality has an obligation to provide Post-retirement Health Care Benefits to certain of ifs retirees. According to the
rules of the Medical Aid Funds, with which the municipality is associated, a member (who is on the current Conditions of
Service), on retirement, is entitied to remain a continued member of the Medical Aid Fund, in which case the municipality is
liable for a certain portion of the medical aid membership fee,

The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and unrecognised actuarial
gains and losses, reduced by unrecognised past service costs. The plan is unfunded. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method, incorporating actuarial assumptions and a discount rate based
on the government bond rate.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income, unless the changes to the plan are conditional on the employees
remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting pericd). in this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period.

The municipality has an obligation to provide Long-service Allowance Benefits to all of its employees. According to the rules of
the Long-service Allowance Scheme, which the municipality instituted and operates, an employee (who is on the current
Conditions of Service), is entitled to a cash allowance, calculated in terms of the rules of the scheme, after 10, 15, 20, 25 and
30 years of continued service. The municipality’s liability is based on an actuarial valuation. The projected unit credit method
has been used to value the liabilities. Actuarial gains and losses on the long-term incentives are accounted for through the
statement of financial performance.

1.13 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
s the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
. it is probabie that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
*»  areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present abligation at the
reporting date,

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.
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1.13 Provisions and contingencies (continued)

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.

Where discounting Is used, the canying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

if an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 40.
1.14 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value {primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) {o the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm's length transaction. .

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

. the municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
municipality; and

«  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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1.14 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)
Rendering of services

When the cutcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when ali the following conditions are satisfied:

. the amount of revenue can be measursd reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the

municipality,
*  the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
*  the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

Service charges relating to electricity and water are based on consumption. Meters are read on a monthly basis and are
recognised as revenue when invoiced. Provisional estimates of consumption, based on the consumption history, are made
monthly when meter readings have not been performed. The provisional estimates of consumption are recognised as revenue
when invoiced, except at year-end when estimates of consumption up to year-end are recorded as revenue without being
invoiced. Adjustments to provisional estimates of consumption are made in the invoicing period in which meters have been
read. These adjustments are recognised as revenue in the invoicing period. In respect of estimates of consumption between
the last reading date and the reporting date, an accrual is made based on the average monthly consumption from the first
reading after the reporting date.

Service charges relating to refuse removal are recognised on a monthly basis in arrears by applying the approved tariff to each
property that has a water connection. Tariffs are determined per category of property usage, and are levied monthly based on
the number of refuse containers on each property, regardless of whether or not all containers are emptied during the month.

Service charges from sewerage and sanitation are charged on both vacant and developed property using the tariffs approved
from Council and are levied monthly.

Interest, royalties and other
interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
Royaities are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is
performed.

Revenue arising from the application of the approved tariff of charges is recognised when the service is rendered by applying
the relevant approved tariff. This includes the issuing of licences and permits.

Income for agency services is recognised on a monthly basis once the income coliected on behalf of agents has been
quantified. The income recognised is in terms of the agency agreement.

Finance income from the sale of housing by way of instalment sales agreements or finance leases is recognised on a time
proportion basis.

Revenue from the sale of electricity prepaid units is recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership has passed to the
buyer.

Revenue received from pre-paid electricity sales are deferred and recognised as revenue on the consumption basis,
commencing on the date of purchase. The consumption of pre-paid electricity is measured by using a trend analysis and other
historical data about electricity usage, including how often an electricity card is purchased or additionat units of electricity
lcaded onto a pre-paid card.

1.15 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determined by a court or other faw
enforcement body, as a conseguence of the breach of laws or regulations.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. in a non-exchange transaction, a municipality
either receives value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to
another municipality without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
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1.15 Revenue from non-exchange transactions {(continued)

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed
as specified.

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance with laws and or
regutations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or other penaities imposed for breaches
of the law.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.
Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a Rability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
municipality.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to
the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recogniss a liability.
Where a liability is required to be recognised i will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is
subsequently reduced, because the taxable avent occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is
recognised as revenue.

Taxes

The municipality recognises an asset in respect of taxes when the taxable event occurs and the asset recognition criteria are
met.

Resources arising from taxes satisfy the definition of an asset when the municipality controls the resources as a result of a past
event (the taxable event) and expects to receive future economic benefits or service potential from those resources. Resources
arising from taxes satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset when it is probable that the inflow of resources will occur and
their fair value can be reliably measured. The degree of probability attached to the inflow of resources is determined on the
basis of evidence available at the time of initial recognition, which includes, but is not limited to, disclosure of the taxable event
by the taxpayer.

The municipality analyses the taxation laws to determine what the taxable events are for the various taxes levied.

The taxable event for value added tax is the undertaking of taxable activity during the taxation period by the taxpayer.

The taxable event for property tax is the passing of the date on which the tax is levied, or the period for which the tax is levied, if
the tax is levied on a periodic basis,

Taxation revenue is determined at a gross amount. It is not reduced for expenses paid through the tax system.
Transfers

Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the
transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
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1.15 Revenue from non-exchange fransactions {continued)

Debt forgiveness and assumption of liabilities

The municipality recegnise revenue in respect of debt forgiveness when the former debt no longer meets the definition of a
liability or satisfies the criteria for recognition as a liability, provided that the debt forgiveness does not satisfy the definition of a
contribution from owners.

Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at the fair value of the debt forgiven, Where debt is carried at a value other
than fair value, the receivable is recognised at the carrying amount.

Fines

Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfies the criteria for recognition
as an asset.

Assets arising from fines are measured at the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the municipality.
Where the municipality collects fines in the capacily of an agent, the fine will not be revenue of the coliecting entity.
Bequests

Bequests that satisfy the definition of an asset are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probahle that the future
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality, and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Services in-kind
Services in-kind are not recognised.
1.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. The amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined as follows:
*  Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset less any
investment income on the temporary investment of those borrowings.
*  Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the municipality on funds generally borrowed for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying assel. The borrowing costs capitalised do not exceed the tofal borrowing costs
incurred.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.17 Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
1.18 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure means:
. overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
° expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with
the purpose of the main division.
Al expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in

the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.
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1.19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.

Al expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.20 Irregular expenditure

“irregular expenditure”, in relation to a municipality or municipal entity, means-—

(a) expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement
of this Act, and which has not been condoned in terms of section 170;

(b) expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement
of the Municipal Systems Act, and which has not been condoned in terms of that Act;

(c) expenditure incurred by a municipality in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of the Public
Office-Bearers Act, 1998 {Act No. 20 of 1998); or

(d) expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement
of the supply chain management policy of the municipality or entity or any of the municipality’s by-laws giving effect to such
policy, and which has not been condoned in terms of such policy or by-law, but excludes expenditure by a municipality which
falis within the definition of unauthorised expenditure

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end
and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In
such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action s required with the exception of
updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irreguiar expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If iiability for the
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate
steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting
officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the
financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not
been condoned and no person is liable in {aw, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant
programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the
irregular expenditure register.

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000}, and the Public Office Bearers Act {Act No. 20 of 1898} or is in contravention of the
economic entity’s supply chain management policy. frregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. lrreguiar
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently
accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.21 Presentation of currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand.

1.22 Offsetting

Assets, labilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is required or permitted by a Standard of
GRAP
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1.23 Housing development fund

The Housing Development Fund was established in terms of the Housing Act, (Act No. 107 of 1997). Loans from national and
provincial government used to finance housing selling schemes undertaken by the municipality were extinguished on 1 April
1998 and transferred to a Housing Development Fund. Housing selling schemes, both complete and in progress as at 1 April
1998, were also fransferred to the Housing Development Fund. In terms of the Housing Act, all proceeds from housing
developments, which include rental income and sales of houses, must be paid into the Housing Development Fund. Monies
standing to the credit of the Housing Development Fund can be used only to finance housing developments within the
municipal area subject to the approval of the Provincial MEC respaonsible for housing.

1.24 Internal reserves
Self insurance reserve

The municipality has a Self-Insurance Reserve to set aside amounts to offset potential losses or claims that cannot be insured
externally. The balance of the self-insurance fund is invested in short-term cash investments,

Claims are settled by transferring a corresponding amount from the Self-insurance Reserve to the accumulated surplus.
1.25 Revaluation reserve

The surplus arising from the revaluation of property, plant and equipment is credited to a non-distributable reserve. The
revaluation surplus is realised as revalued buildings are depreciated, through a transfer from the revaluation reserve to the
accumulated surplus/deficit. On disposal, the net revaluation surplus is transferred to the accumulated surplus/deficit while
gains or losses on disposal, based on revalued amounts, are credited or charged to the statement of financial performance.

1.26 Conditional grants and receipts

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the municipality
has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria,
conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognised.

1.27 Budget information

Municipality are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which
is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar,

General purpose financial reporting by municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The annual financial statements and the budgst are on the same basis of accounting thersfore a comparison with the budgeted
amounts for the reporting period have been included in the annual financial statements.

1.28 Changes in accounting policies, estimates and errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management are applied retrospectively in accordance with GRAP 3
requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
change in policy. In such cases the municipality shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the
earliest period for which retrospective restatement Is practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements. Details of changes in
estimates are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements where applicable.

Correction of Errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with GRAP 3
requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the pericd-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
error. In such cases the municipality shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest
period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

1.29 Events after reporting date
Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events are accounted for in the Annual Financial Statements.

The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting date are disclosed in the notes
to the Annual Financial Statements.
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1.30 Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following GRAP standards have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
municipality:

GRAP 18 Segment Reporting - issued February 2011
GRAP 20 Related parfies - issued June 2011
GRAP 25 Employee Benefits - issued November 2009

Application of all of the above GRAP standards will be effective from a date to be announced by the Minister of Finance.
This date is not currently available.

The ASB Directive 5 paragraph 29 allows for the Municipality to apply the principles established in a Standard of GRAP that
has been issued, but is not yet in effect, in developing an appropriate accounting policy dealing with a particular transaction
or event before applying paragraph .12 of GRAP 3 on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
The Municipality applied the principles established in the following Standards of GRAP that have been issued, but is not yet
in effect, in developing appropriate accounting policies dealing with the following transactions, but have not early adopted
these Standards:

Employee Benefits (GRAP 25 - issued December 2009)

Management has considered all the above standards issued but not yet effective and anticipates that the adoption of these
standards will not have a significant impact on the financial position, financial performance or cash flows of the municipality.

The following standards have been issued and are effective but not yet applicable;

GRAP 21 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets {effective 1 July 2012)

GRAP 23 Revenue of non-exchange transactions (effective 1 July 2012)

GRAP 24 Presentation of budget information in financial statements {effective 1 July 2012)
GRAP 26 impairment of cash-generating assets {effective 1 July 2012)

GRAP 103 Heritage assets (effective 1 July 2012)

GRAP 104 Financial instruments {effective 1 july 2012)
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2. Investment property
2012 2011
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying vaiue
Valuation depreciation Valuation depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
investment property 87,822,500 - 87822500 87,989,228 - 57,989,228
Reconciliation of investment property - 2012
Opening Transfers Fair value Total
balance adjustments

Investment property

87,989,228 8,563,025 (8,729,753} 87,822,500

Reconciliation of investment property - 2011

investment property

Opening Disposals Transfers  Additions at  Fair value Total
balance fair value  adjustments
67,537,900 (2,009,272) 34,718 3,810,500 18,615,382 87,989,228

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for
inspection at the registered office of the municipality,

Revenue earned on Investment Properties for the 2011/12 financial year was R1,019,823 (2010/11 : RB05,959).

All transfers to Investment Property were from owner-occupied property.

Investment Properties are adjusted 1o their fair value on an annual basis. The valuations are performed by Bofand Valuers,
independent valuers who are not connected to the municipality.

3. Property, plant and equipment

Land
Buildings
Infrastructure
Community
Other
Heritage

Total

2012 2011
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation depreciation Valuation  depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
374,637,849 - 374,637,849 371,417,899 - 371,417,899

121,837,850 (15,864,991) 105,972,859 122,555,997 (10,641,190) 111,914,807
4,942,020,108 :2,559,019,054) 2,383,001,055 4,836,765,462 2,490,079,312) 2,346,686,150
116,579,373  (35,215,455) 81,363,918 111,041,175 (30,856,848) 80,184,327
71,214,728 (27,298,702} 43,913,026 61,683,023 (24,520,973) 37,162,050
76,867,844 - 76,867,844 76,895,309 - 76,995,309

5,703,154,753 (2,637,398,202) 3,065,756,551 5,580,458,865 (2,556,098,323) 3,024,360,542
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Figures in Rand 2012 Restated
2011

4. Intangible assets

2012 2011

Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value

Valuation amortisation Valuation amertisation

and and

accumulated accumulated

impairment impairment
Water rights 2,360,000 - 2,360,000 2,360,000 - 2,360,000
Computer software, other 1,731,401 {544,136) 1,187,265 803,000 (325,375) 477,625
Total 4,091,401 (544,136) 3,547,265 3,163,000 (325,375) 2,837,625

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2012

Opening Additions Amortisation Total

balance
Water rights 2,360,000 - - 2,360,000
Computer software, other 477,625 928,401 (218,761} 1,187,265
2,837,625 928,401 (218,761) 3,547,265

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2011

Opening Additions Disposals/ Amortisation Total

balance write-offs
Water rights 2,360,000 - - - 2,360,000
Computer software, other 504,384 118,275 (8,089) {136,945) 477,625
2,864,384 118,275 {8,089) (136,945) 2,837,625

The municipality entered info a contract with Kraai Bosch Plase (Pty) Ltd on 28 May 1998. The contract does not define the
period for which the municipality will cease to enjoy the right to use the water from the Kraaibosch dam.There is no reason to
believe that the right to the Kraaibosch dam has a limited useful life due to the condition of the dam. Regular assessment is
performed to determine whether the conditions that existed at the inception of the contract have changed.

5.  Other financial assets

Held to maturity

Momentum 275,632 -
Sinking fund for external loan

Liberty 5,415,671 1,261,697

Sinking fund for external loan

5,681,303 1,261,697

Non-current assets
Held to maturity 5,691,303 1,261,697

In determining the recoverability of other financial assets, the Overstrand Municipality considers any change in the credit quality
of the other financial assets from the date the credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
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6. Employee benefit obligations
Defined benefit plan

The municipality provides certain post-retirement health care benefits by funding the medical aid contributions of qualifying
retired members of the municipality. According to the rules of the Medical Aid Funds, with which the municipality is associated,
a member (who is on the current Conditions of Service) is entitled to remain a continued member of such medical aid fund on
retirement, in which case the municipality is liable for a certain portion of the medical aid membership fee. The municipality
operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for these qualifying employees. No other post-retirement benefits are provided to
these employess.

The municipality makes monthly contributions for health care arrangements to the following medical aid schemes:
- Bonitas;

- LA Health;

- Prosano;

- Hosmed;

- Samwumed; and

- Keyhealth.

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at
30 June 2012 by Mr DR Poane, Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa, including projections for the 2013 and 2014
financial periods. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost,
were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The members of the Post-employment Health Care Benefit Plan are made up as

follows:

In-service members (employees) 387 378

Continuation members (retirees, widowers and orphans) 70 66
457 444

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as foliows:

Carrying value

Present value of the defined benefit obligation-wholly unfunded (73,505,000) (63,437,000}

Non-current liabilities (71,562,000) (61,660,000}

Current liabilities {1,943,000) (1,777,000}

{73,505,000) (63,437,000)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening balance 63,437,000 56,587,000
Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance 10,068,000 6,850,000

73,505,000 63,437,000

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance

Current service cost 4,191,000 3,872,000
Interest cost 5,234,000 4,868,000
Actuarial (gains) losses 2,517,906 -
Benefits paid (1,874,906)  (1,690,000)

10,068,000 6,850,000
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6. Employee benefit obligations {continued)
Key assumptions used

Assumptions used at the reporting date:

Discount rates used 7.86 % 8.25 %
Medical cost trend rates 6.37 % 6.75 %
Net effective discounted rate 1.40 % 141 %

Management assessed the assumptions used and found it to be adequate.
Other assumptions

Assumed healthcare cost trends rates have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in surplus or deficit. A one
percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trends rates would have the following effects:

One Cne
percentage percentage
point increase point

decrease
Effect on the aggregate of the service cost and interest cost 12,243,000 8,853,000
Effect on defined benefit obligation 84,750,000 64,341,000
Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
R R R R R
Defined benefit obligation 73,505,000 63,437,000 56,587,000 53,518,638 47,582,639

Defined contribution plan

It is the policy of the municipality to provide retirsment benefits to all its employees. A number of defined contribution provident
funds, all of which are subject to the Pensions Fund Act exist for this purpose.

The municipality is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.

7. Long term receivables

Land sales 3,352 4,352
Officials: Study loans 5,300 5,300
Housing selling scheme loans 18,643 19,459
Sport clubs 124,075 142,210

151,370 171,321

Non-current assets

L ong ferm receivables 126,072 147,060

Current assets

Long term receivables 25,298 24,261
151,370 171,321

In determining the recoverability of fong term receivables, the Overstrand Municipality considers any change in the credit quality
of the long term receivables from the date the credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
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8. Inventories
Stores and material 6,588,292 4,359,649
Water 217,058 118,540
Work-in-progress - Property developments 270,661 47,773,751
7,076,011 52,251,840
Inventories (write-downs) - (685,397}
7,076,011 51,566,543
Inventories recognised as an expense during the year: 77,175,718 21,736,704
Stores and material 7,777,481 5,672,482
Work-in-progress - Property developments 49,987,689 1,003,860
Water 19,410,548 15,060,362
9. Receivables from exchange transactions
Trade debtors 13,150,811 6,160,507
Accrued interest 7,192 92,000
13,158,003 6,252,507

In determining the recoverability of trade and other receivabies, the Overstrand Municipality considers any change in the credit

quality of the trade and other receivables from the date the credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.

10. Other receivables from non-exchange transactions

Control accounts - sundry 1,108,076 5,920,337

Deposits 389,815 184,570

Government grants and subsidies 6,552,223 14,067,121

Public contributions and subsidies 420,716 748,406
8,471,930 20,920,434

11. VAT receivable

VAT 3,566,924 17,676,711

In determining the recoverability of VAT receivable, the Overstrand Municipality considers any change in the credit quality of the

VAT receivable from the date the credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
12, Consumer debtors

Gross balances

Rates 14,028,345 16,616,716
Electricity 15,138,515 18,120,698
Water 0,734,617 11,253,782
Sewerage 6,700,846 7,735,901
Refuse 4,433,977 5,417,686
Housing rental 226,623 430,470
Other 18,170,968 5,078,637

68,433,891 64,653,980
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12. Consumer debtors (continued)
Less: Provision for debt impairment
Rates (2,931,737) (3,274,571
Electricity {809,377) (7,904,024}
Water (527,014)  (4,588,642)
Sewerage (1,161,864)  (1,297,731)
Refuse (739,115} (B25,546)
Housing rental (24,837) (27,741)
Other (11,819,748)  (2,313,628)
(18,113,692) {20,231,383)
Net balance
Rates 11,096,608 13,342,145
Electricity 14,329,138 10,216,674
Water 9,207,603 6,665,140
Sewerage 5,538,982 6,438,260
Refuse 3,694,862 4,592,140
Housing rentat 201,786 402,729
Other 6,251,220 2,765,009
50,320,199 44,422,097
Rates
Current (0 -30 days) 8,026,290 6,404,401
31-60days 467,021 941,876
61 - 80 days 346,601 507,412
91 - 120 days 280,916 668,952
+120 days 1,975,780 4,819,504
11,096,608 13,342,145
Electricity
Current (0 -30 days) 12,348,398 7,657,003
31 - 60 days 393,282 664,812
61 - 90 days 244,699 284,429
91 - 120 days 189,050 184,088
+120 days 1,153,709 1,426,342
14,329,138 10,216,674
Water
Current (0 -30 days) 6,935,908 3,510,624
31 - 60 days 522,333 664,596
61 - 20 days 427,855 342,922
91 - 120 days 360,567 279,457
+120 days 960,940 1,867,541
9,207,603 6,665,140
Sewerage
Current {0 -30 days) 3,902,853 3,070,801
31 -60 days 285,019 606,935
61 - 90 days 225,721 309,240
91 - 120 days 196,812 219,102
+120 days 928,577 2,232,182
5,538,982 6,438,260
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12. Consumer debtors (continued)

Refuse

Current (0 -30 days) 2,798,770 2,356,529
31 - 60 days ) 151,102 339,534
61 - 90 days 116,288 189,531
91 - 120 days 95,119 127,898
+120 days 533,583 1,578,648

3,694,862 4,592,140

Housing rental

Current (0 -30 days} 127,623 184,701
31 - 60 days 12,891 34,267
61 - 90 days 11,798 21,812
9 - 120 days 10,561 13,879
+120 days ) 38,913 148,070
201,786 402,729
Other
Current (0 -30 days) 599,507 995,518
31 - 60 days 107,610 235,779
61 - 90 days 64,063 184,801
91 - 120 days 44,558 107,255
+120 days 5,435,482 1,241,656

6,251,220 2,765,009
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12. Consumer debtors (continued)
Summary of debtfors by customer classification
Consumers
Current (0 -30 days) 30,301,455 27,227,950
31 - 60 days 1,986,508 4,387,700
61 - 20 days 1,442,994 2,307,010
91 -120 days 1,185,151 1,937,549
+120 days 19,962,219 16,424,060
54,878,327 52,284,278
l.ess: Provision for debt impalrment (17,233,204) {18,645,689)
37,645,123 33,638,589
Industrial/ commercial
Current (0 -30 days) 9,553,301 8,380,198
31-60 days 318,332 617,425
61 - 90 days 206,858 228,209
91 - 120 days 88,763 255,098
+120 days 774,983 527,215
10,942,237 10,008,145
{.ess: Provision for debt impairment (880,487)  (1,586,193)
10,061,750 8,421,952
National and provincial government
Current (0 -30 days) 637,749 403,373
31 - 60 days 106,558 72,002
61 - 90 days 111,180 136,487
91 - 120 days 155,707 59,953
+120 days 1,602,134 1,689,741
2,613,328 2,361,556
Tofal
Current (0 -30 days) 40,492,504 36,011,521
31 -60 days 2,411,399 5,077,127
61 - 90 days 1,761,032 2,671,706
91 - 120 days 1,429,621 2,252,600
121 - 365 days 22,339,335 18,641,025
68,433,891 64,653,979
Less: Provision for debt Impairment (18,113,692) (20,231,882)
50,320,199 44,422,097
Less: Provision for debt impairment
Current (0 -30 days) {10,297,589)  (9,875,428)
31 - 60 days (648,344)  (1,852,533)
61 - 90 days (468,094) {999,698)
91 - 120 days {378,663) {986,947)
+120 DAYS (6,320,102) (6,517,277)

(18,113,692)

(20,231,883)
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12. Consumer debtors (continued)

Reconciliation of debt impairment provision

Balance at beginning of the year (20,231,883} (23,549,131)
Contributions to provision 190,129 {4,805,545)
Debt impairment written off against provision 1,928,062 8,122,793

(18,113,692) (20,231,883)

13. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 16,330 12,800
Bank balances 51,683,137 19,990,901
Short-term deposits 75,000,000 50,000,000

126,699,467 70,003,701

The municipality had the foflowing bank accounts

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances
June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010
ABSA - Cheque - 322-000-0035 70,318,621 41,821,282 27,921,943 51,031,117 19,493,713 19,025,442

ABSA - Cheque - 405-589-9787 6,994 147 5,382 1,686 5,301 3,897
ABSA - Cheque - 405-642-0921 63,400 28,244 60,428 74,237 37,772 18,275
ABSA - Cheque - 406-857-8021 404,637 418,444 788,925 331,156 325,261 297,744
ABSA - Cheque - 407-298-3157 244,941 128,855 262,950 244,941 128,854 262,950
ABSA Call account 25,000,000 20,000,000 10,000,000 25,000,000 20,000,000 10,000,000
Investec Call account - 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000 -
STB Call account 50,000,000 - - 50,060,000 - -
Cash on hand - - - 16,330 12,800 15,000
Total 146,038,593 92,396,972 39,039,628 126,699,467 70,003,701 29,623,308
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14. Non-current assefs held for sale

Assets meeting the definition and recognition criteria of non-current assets held for sale are reclassified and measured in
accordance with GRAP 100 requirements.

ERF NO. 6830, Hermanus

Council resolved to sell this property in 2009 for the purpose of consolidation with an adjacent residential property. The
property is 54m2 in extent and was scld to HN De Villiers for R5,000. Transfer of the property was delayed by the purchaser.
Transfer is expected in 2012.

ERF NO. 11138 portion of 243 Hermanus

Council resolved to sell the property in September 2009. The property was sold to the United Church on 22 February 2010.
Transfer was delayed due to suspensive conditions in the Deed of Sale regarding the relocation of lessees on the property.
Transfer is expected in 2012.

Portion 3 of the Farm Middelviei 556, Hawston

Council resolved to sell the property in February 2010. The tender was awarded to Darioyog Investments (Pty) Ltd for the
amount of R23,000,000 in August 2010. Transfer was expected in 2012. During the period the transaction did not materialise
and was subsequently transferred to investment property.

ERVEN NO. 6468 to 6490, Hermanus (Mount Pleasant 22 Erven)

These are Gap Housing Properties. Council resolved to seil the properties on 29 October 2010. On 11 June 2012 the transfers
for erven 6472, 6475, 6478 and 6481 were registered at the deeds office. the remaining 18 erven has been actively marketed
and transfers are expected in 2013.

ERF NO. 11172 portion of 257, Mount Pleasant
Council resolved to sell the property in April 2010. The agreement was signed in September 2010. Transfer is expected to
register in 2012.

ERF NO. 5464, Kleinmond
Councll resolved to sell the property in April 2010. The contract was signed in June 2011. Transfer is expected to register in
2012,

ERF NO. 5452 portion of 2013, Onrus
Coungcil resolved to sell the property in June 2011 and the contract was signed in July 2011. Transfer is expscted in 2012.

ERF NO. 109, Van Dykshaai
Council resolved to sell in Ssptember 2010. Transfer is expected in 2012.

ERF NG 1931 portion of 215, Zwelihle
Coungil resolved to sell the property in March 2009. Transfer is expected in 2012,

ERF NO. 611, Gansbaai
Council resolved to sell the property in September 2010. Property will be tendered in 2012. Transfer is expected early 2013,

ERF NO. 3895, Ganshaai
Council approved the exchange of land in November 2010. Transfer is expected early 2013.

ERF NO. 2203, portion of 407, Hawston
Sale i.t.o. memorandum of agreement between the Municipality and Provincial Government. Sale agreement in process of
being finalised. Transfer expected early 2013.

ERF NO. 11154, Hermanus
Council approved the sale of the properly in January 2012. The property was tendered but the sale did not register. The
property will be tendered again in 2012.

ERF NO. 11436, Hermanus
Council approved the sale in May 2011. The property was tender but the sale did not realise. The property will be tendered for
sale again in 2012.
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14. Non-current assets held for sale {continued)

ERVEN 7506, 7507 and 8619 - 8643, Kleinmond

This is part of the Kleinmond Harbour Development. Council approved the sale of the erven in 2002. The final contract was
signed in 2010. Transfer of the properties will register in phases during 2012/2013.

ERF NO. 2856, Sandbaai

Councit approved the sale on 30 November 2011. Contract signed in December 2011. Transfer is expected in 2012.

ERF NO. 217, Zwelihle

Council approved the sale on 30 May 2012, Transfer is expected in 2012.

ERF NO. 3897, Gansbaai

Sale i.t.o. memorandum of agreement between the Municipality and Provincial Government. Sale agreement in process of

being finalised. Transfer expected early 2013.

ERF NOQ. 7699, Kleinmond

Sale i.t.o. memorandum of agreement between the Municipality and Provincial Government. Sale agreement in process of

being finalised. Transfer expected early 2013.

ERF NO. 7997, Kleinmond

Council approved the sale on 29 February 2012. Transfer is expected in 2012.

ERF NQO. 2834, Sandbaai

Council approved the transfer of the property on 25 January 2012. Negotiations are underway. Transfer expected in 2012.

ERF 114586, (a portion of Erf 243), Hermanus

Principle approval obtained from Council on 30 May 2012. Transfer expected sarly 2013.

Non-current assets held for sale comprises the following:

Erf no. 6830 - Hermanus
Erf no. 11138 - Hermanus
Portion 3 of the farm Middelviei 556 - Hawston

Erven no. 6468 to 6490 - Hermanus Mount Pleasant

Erf no. 11172 - Hermanus Mount Pleasant

Erf no, 5464 - Kleinmond

Erf no. 5452 - Onrus

Erf no. 109 - Van Dyksbaai

Erf no. 1931 - Hermanus Zwelihle

£rf no. 611 - Ganshaai

Erf no. 3895 - Gansbaai

Erf no. 2203, portion of 407 - Hawston

Erf no. 11154 - Hermanus

Erf no. 11436 - Hermanus

Erven 7506, 7507 and 8619 to 8643 - Kleinmond
Erf no. 2856 - Sandbaai

Erf no. 217 - Zwelihie

Erf no. 3897 - Gansbaai

Erf no. 7699 - Kleinmond

Exf no. 7997 - Kleinmond

Erf no. 2834 - Sandbaai

Erf no. 11456, a portion of Erf 243 - Hermanus

- 1,000

- 360,509

- 23,000,000
1,513,636 1,868,386
- 7,197

- 375,000

- 1,083,001
1,025,000 1,200,000
- 6,979

99,821 -
3,232 -
193,059 -
4,300,000 -
48,847 -
336,002 -
437,656 -

5] -

109,656 -
697 -

1,010 -
14,436,975 -
317,702 -
22,823,298 27,802,162
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15. Other financial liabilities

Held at amortised cost
Annuity loans 357,004,273 261,299,006

Non-current liabilities
At amortised cost 340,580,681 247,081,490

Current liabilities
At amortised cost 16,423,592 14,217,516

357,004,273 261,299,006

The fair values of the financial liabilities were determined as follows:

a) The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the Annual Financial Statements approximate their fair values. The fair value of Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilittes were determined after considering the standard terms and conditions of agreements entered into
between the municipality and other parties as well as the current payment ratio's of the municipality's debtors.

b} At the reporting date there are no significant concentrations of credit risk for Loans and Receivables at Fair Value. The
carrying amount reflected above represents the municipality’s maximum exposure to credit risk for such loans and receivables.

Refer to note 43 for maturity analysis of financial liabilities.
16. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year : 486,663 -
- in second to fifth year inclusive 683,749 -

1,170,412 -
less: future finance charges {172,843) -
Present value of minimum lease payments 997,769 -

Present value of minimum lease payments due

- within one year 374,480 -
- in second fo fifth year inclusive 623,290 -
997,770 -

The municipality has entered into contracts with suppliers for the rental of office equipment and has agread to accept the option
to purchase the equipment at the end of the lease term.

The average lease term was 3 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 12% (2011: Nil%).

Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rent.
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17. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Government grants 5,193,811 5,073,085
Conditional receipts 2,781,436 4,881,866

7,875,247 9,954,951

Government grants comprise of the following:

Neighbourhood development partnership grant 681,808 3,962,672
Expanded public works programme 696,145 -
PAWC: Housing allocation 3,418,697 -
Housing consumer education grant 66,321 129,391
Mobility strategy (pound) 330,840 981,022

5,193,811 5,073,085

Conditional receipts comprise of the following:

Cleanest town competition 203,531 255,202
VUNA awards competition - 394,109
ABSA mentorship (grey power) 50,000 50,000
Spaces for sport 239,620 125,127
CSIR housing grant - 3,141,515
Department of water affairs: ACIP project 151,795 850,000
ABSA SAMRAS user group - 450
Whale coast sighage - 39,863
Fire victims (Kleinmond informal settlement) 25,600 25,600
National fotto funds 500,000 -
Eskom SWH project 1,610,890 -

2,781,436 4,881,866

Movement during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year 9,954,951 1,922,016
Additions during the year 73,224,273 77,776,083
Income recognition during the year (75,203,977} (69,743,148)

7,975,247 9,954,951

The nature and extent of government grants recognised in the annual financial statements and an indication of other forms of
government assistance from which the municipality has directly benefited; and

Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies altaching to government assistance that has been recognised,

See note 23 for reconciliation of grants from National/Provincial Government,
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18. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2012

Opening  Adjustments Utilised Total
Balance during the
year
Rehabilitation of tip sites 33,412,214 3,457,236 - 36,869,450
Clearing of alien vegetation 1,983,914 144,019 (411,641) 1,716,292
l.ong service bonuses 4,571,000 1,624,136 - 6,095,136
Gratificaticn payable 481,096 {4,688} (11,602} 464,606
40,448,224 5,120,503 (423,243) 45,145,484
Reconciliation of provisions - 2011
Opening  Adjustments Utilised Total
Balance during the
year
Rehabilitation of tip sites 18,995,425 14,416,789 - 33412214
Clearing of alien vegetation 1,920,303 529,887 (466,276) 1,083,914
Long service bonuses 4,305,000 266,000 - 4,571,000
Gratification payable 492,503 - (11,407) 481,096

25,713,231 15,212,676 (477,683) 40,448,224

Non-current liabilities 39,534,817 35,754,187
Current liabilities 5,610,667 4,694,037

45,145,484 40,443,224

Rehabilitation of tip sites

The cost to rehabilitate all identified sites in the Overstrand are estimated at R36,869,449,

The Depariment of Environmental Affairs communicated to municipalities to provide assistance to licence some of their facilities
for either continued operation or closure. Hermanus, Hawston and Stanford's waste disposal facilities were identified to be
licenced in the 2012/2013 fiscal year. The Department has budgeted for R50,000 per site for the entire process. During
discussions held with the Department on the 7th of September 2012, there was uncertainty and lack of clarity surounding the
costs to be covered by the Department. The expected costs for licensing each site is R200,000 and is included in the provision.
As a result the decrease in exposure is uncertain and may be negligitable, therefore no adjustment will be made.

Clearing of alien vegetation

Approx. 23% of a total area of 5,705ha must be cleared during the next 5 to 10 years and the estimated cost amounts to
R1,716,292.

L.ong service bonuses
An actuarial valuation has been carried out on the long service bonuses by a professional actuary as at 30 June 2012,
Gratification payable

The cost of the gratification payable was based on employees not belonging to a pension fund up untill February 2003 and is
only payable on retirement.
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12. Payables from exchange transactions
Accrued bonus 5,602,062 5,307,562
Accrued leave pay 8,601,764 7,879,740
Builders' deposits 7,442 626 7,003,831
Control accounts - salaries 53,946 58,249
Control accounts - sundry 6,068,027 3,295,587
Deferred income 728,742 1,015,053
Deposits received 349,617 294,317
Other payables 5,234,325 4,263,049
Payments received in advanced 5,153,448 4,007,775
Retention monies 7,688,774 6,934,485
Trade payables 24,806,289 40,723,370
71,919,620 80,873,018
20. Consumer deposits
Services 31,206,423 18,362,889
21. Property rates
Rates received
Residential and business 136,510,901 128,737,266
136,510,901 128,737,266
Property rates - penalties imposed and collection charges 995,085 853,371
137,505,996 129,590,637
22, Service charges
Sale of electricity 224,956,553 183,552,219
Sale of water 83,908,678 74,089,375
Refuse removal 39,921,933 36,945,036
Sewerage and sanitation charges 56,882,814 50,380,527
405,669,978 344,977,157
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23. Government grants and subsidies

National Equitable share 31,156,000 26,920,153
National Financial management grant 1,250,000 1,000,000
National Integrated national electricity grant 2,000,000 3,639,000
National Municipal systems improvement grant 790,000 750,000
National Neighbourhood development partners grant 5,280,865 6,973,164
Provincial Community development workers grant 78,000 100,000
Provincial Housing consumer education grant 63,070 75,497
Provincial Library grant 640,000 608,000
Provincial Main road subsidy 65,000 40,200
Provincial Mobility strategy (pound) 650,182 18,979
Provincial Municipal infrastructure grant 13,971,000 6,630,757
Provincial Social housing projects grant 3,186,121 35,713,839
Nationai Expanded public works programme 80,855 -
National Regional bulk infrastructure grant 36,211,611 -

95,422,704 82,469,580

National Equitable Share
in terms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent community members.

All registered indigents receive a monthly subsidy based on the basic service charges for water, electricity, sewerage, refuse
and 6kl free basic water and 50kw unit of electricity (2011: same principal applied), which is funded from the grant.

National Financial management grant

Current year receipts 1,250,000 1,000,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1,250,600  (1,000,000)

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).
National Integrated national electricity grant

Current year receipts 2,000,000 3,639,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (2,000,000} (3,638,000)

Conditions still fo be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).

National Municipal systems improvement grant

Current year receipts 790,000 750,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (790,000) (750,000)

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).

National Neighbourhood development partners grant

Batance unspent at beginning of year 3,962,673 -
Current year receipts 2,000,000 10,935,837
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (5,280,865) (6,973,164)

681,808 3,962,673
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23. Government grants and subsidies {continued)

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).

Provincial Community development workers grant

Current year receipts 78,000 100,000

Conditions met - transferred to revenue {78,000} (100,000)

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).

Provincial Housing consumer education grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 129,391 204,888

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (63,070) {75,497)

66,321 129,391

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).

Provincial Library grant

Current year receipts 640,000 608,000

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (640,000) {608,000)

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).

Provincial Main road subsidy

Current year receipts 65,000 40,200

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (65,000) {40,200)

Conditions still to be met - remain liabifities (see note 17).

Provincial Mobility strategy (pound)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 981,022 -

Current year receipts - 1,000,000

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (650,182) (18,978}
330,840 981,022

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).

Provincial Municipal infrastructure grant

Current year receipts 13,971,000 9,209,000

Conditions met - transferred to revenue {13,971,000) (6,630,757)

Transferred to debtors - (2,578,243)

Conditions sfill to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).
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23. Government grants and subsidies (continued)
Provincial Social housing projects grant
Current year receipis 6,604,818 32,867,932
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (3,186,121} (35,713,839)
Transferred to debtors - 2,845,907
3,418,697 -
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17).
National Expanded public works programme
Current-year receipts 777,000 -
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (80,855) -
696,145 -
Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities {see note 17).
National Regional bulk infrastructure grant
Current-year receipts 36,211,611 -
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (36,211,611) -
Conditions still to be met - remain liabifities (see note 17).
24. Otherincome
Administration charges 184,425 202 058
Admission fees 661,180 597,789
Building plan fees 3,252,194 2,799,914
Cemetery fees 191,074 149,611
Central improvement district 3,663,150 3,601,286
Collection charges 2,070,543 1,705,232
Commission received 91,403 75,663
Developers contributions 1,718,763 3,250,422
Library fees 40,628 50,931
Parking fees 128,289 126,984
Plot clearing charges 227,645 132,707
Post office agency 50,944 29,149
Pound fees 179,220 160,032
Private telephone calls recovered 307,893 308,367
Reconnection fees 779,520 278,761
Roadworthy certificates 452770 456,911
SETA claims 1,046,460 464,260
Sundry income 763,351 1,250,914
Swimming pool fees 82,132 12,434
Town planning fees 755,642 708,639
Valuation and clearance certificates 335,309 388,714
Vehicle permits 246,121 230,438
17,228,746 17,071,216
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25. General expenses
Advertising 1,365,040 1,153,450
Assets expensed 459,469 -
Auditors remuneration 2,601,277 2,732,245
Bank charges 973,890 878,779
Chemicals 6,411,978 6,658,905
Commission paid 3,416,026 2,955 518
Conditional receipts expenses 54,612,203 4,028,539
Consumables 977,818 1,007,535
Contribution to provisions 3,601,254 14,946,676
Debt collection - 788,358
Delegate expenses 129,910 130,402
Diesel for boilers 259,625 240,098
Electricity 2,574,777 2,146,420
Fuel and oil 9,041,885 6,887,276
Hermanus public protection 3,602,728 3,152,369
Hire 315,202 435,554
improvement rebates 22,880,929 21,511,936
insurance 1,651,318 1,724,781
LED project implementation 760,232 437,900
l.ease rentals 1,203,033 1,148,421
Legal fees 2,721,696 605,611
Management of informal settlements 1,475,015 1,462,087
Occupational heatlth and safety 66,344 84,996
Plot clearing costs 284,798 167,980
Postage and courier 1,400,145 1,145,451
Printing and staticnery 1,867,771 1,774,627
Properiy valuation charges 2,418,035 900,558
Public functions 303,465 221,052
Radio license fees 17,440 34,585
Rales rebates and exemptions 4,931,955 4,507,846
Reference library 189,547 126,660
Refusefrecycle bags 242,666 222,288
Security services 3,434,791 3,416,526
Skills development levies 1,719,374 1,913,353
Solid waste chipping 2,369,445 1,846,171
Solid waste dumping fees 1,374,809 3,392,015
Solid waste haulage 4,345,238 2,255,019
Special projects 1,058,561 1,785,620
Staff welfare 161,506 80,463
Subscriptions and membership fees 994,647 776,841
Subsistence and transport 894,795 914,041
Sundry expenses 537,690 1,024,750
Telephone and fax 3,912,101 4,788,922
Title deed search fees 85,388 95,069
Tourism development 2,823,933 3,080,778
Training 2,704,781 2,396,618
Uniforms and protective clothing 1,632,736 1,386,282
Veterinary services 193,084 380,376
Water catchment, research and testing 5,647,953 1,821,529
Workmen's compensation assurance 1,107,108 913,499
167,555,412 116,277,775

Membership fees paid over to SALGA during the year amounted to R215,161 (2011: R723,378).
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26. Operating (deficit) surplus
Operating {deficit) surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Operating lease charges
Equipment
. Contractual amounts 1,203,033 1,149,421
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 2,256,088 13,170,653
Impairment on property, plant and equipment 3,111,159 798,734
impairment on other financial assets - 2,631,821
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 100,668,631 103,346,664
Employee costs 214,655,509 192,172,524
27. Employee related costs
Basic 122,514,408 112,438,185
Bonus 9,483,178 8,677,559
Medical aid - company contributions 7,520,845 7,006,870
UIF 1,166,035 1,095,881
Other payroll levies 51,357 50,319
lL.eave pay provision charge 1,327,499 2,055,834
Post-employment benefils - Pension - Defined contribution plan 34,120,741 27,729,988
Overtime payments 12,029,721 10,505,849
Long-service awards 758,794 535,079
Acting allowances 1,098,986 709,086
Car allowance 8,298,951 7,877,398
Housing benefits and allowances 1,025,208 967,697
Scarcity allowance 1,458,555 1,338,595
Standby allowance 4,813,106 4,351,015
Group ife - company contributions 863,882 773,489
Sundry allowances 1,387,603 1,218,973
Full ime unicn representative 19,395 -
207,938,265 187,332,817
27.1. Remuneration of municipal manager
Annual Remuneration 1,068,483 1,071,102
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 286,701 258,792
Entertainment 10,910 -
1,366,094 1,329,894
Cellphone allowance 18,396 17,952
Leave 87,432 -
105,828 17,952
27.2. Remuneration of chief finance officer
Annual Remuneration 957,878 866,128
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 272,043 246,225
Entertainment 7,197 -
1,237,118 1,112,353
Celiphone allowance 18,840 17,952
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27. Employee related costs (continued}
27.3. Remuneration of director: Management services
Annual Remuneration 554,000 608,026
Car Allowance 24,000 -
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 139,31 196,428
Entertainment 4,000 -
Housing subsidy 2,088 -
723,549 804,454
Celiphone allowance 15,700 17,952
Acting allowance 20,471 14,414
Leave 27,522 -
63,693 32,366
27.4. Remuneration of director: Protection services
Annual Remuneration 608,961 544,404
Car Allowance 120,000 120,000
Contributions to UiF, Medical and Pension Funds 32,854 78,687
Entertainment 6,000 -
767,815 743,091
Celiphone aliowance 18,840 17,952
27.5. Remuneration of director: Infrastructure and planning
Annual Remuneration 937,397 850,031
Car Allowance 60,000 60,000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 224,208 201,179
Computer allowance 6,516 6,516
Entertainment 8,934 -
1,237,055 1,117,726
Cellphone allowance 18,840 17,952
27.6. Remuneration of director: Local economic development
Annual Remuneration 629,876 527,374
Car Allowance 120,000 120,000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 27,885 64,523
Entertainment 19,985 -
797,746 711,897
Cellphcne allowance 18,840 17,952
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27. Employee related costs (continued)
27.7. Remuneration of director: Community services
Annual Remuneration 827,187 685,057
Car Allowance 78,000 126,512
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 33,275 90,644
Computer allowance 3,912 3,912
Entertainment 8,082 -
950,456 906,125
Cellphone allowance 18,840 17,952
27.8. Remuneration of director: Ex QLEDA director
Annual Remuneration - 353,076
Car Allowance - 20,000
Performance Bonuses - 7,068
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds - 74,410
- 454,544
Cellphone allowance - 8,550
28. Remuneration of councillors
Executive Major 611,895 561,678
Deputy Executive Mayor 489,515 461,270
Mayoral Committee Members [2012 : 4; 2011 : 2] 1,835,684 867,820
Speaker 489,515 461,270
Councillors [2012 : 18; 2011 ; 14] 3,290,635 2,487,669
6,717,244 4,839,707
29. Debtimpairment
Contributions to debt impairment provision {190,129) 4,805,546
30. Investment revenue
Interest revenue
Other financial assets 4,271,487 1,435,238
Bank 1,823,701 1,648,498
Interest charged on consumer debtors 2,330,692 2,463,258
Other 784,239 621,280
9,210,119 6,168,274
31. Depreciation and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment 100,449,870 103,209,719
Intangible assets 218,761 136,845
100,668,631 103,346,664
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32. Impairment of assets

Impairments

Property, plant and equipment 3,111,159 798,734

Other financial assets - 2,631,821

NRB bank is under receivership since October 1998. Interest only accrued untill 31

December 2007, There is no guarantee that the municipality will receive the full value

of the investment. During the 2009 financial year a dividend of R0.45 on the original

capital still outstanding has been received. This brings the total payout to 89% of the

original investment.

Due to the fact that the majority of the debt, still to be collected by the receivers,

involves some form of legal action, it is not possible to determine a date as fo when the

Hquidation process will be completed. Management impaired this investment to Rnil

and its been moved to contingent assets as at 30 June 2011.

3,111,159 3,430,555

33. Finance costs

Finance leases 58,008 -

Current borrowings 31,669,076 19,372,688
31,727,084 19,372,688

34. Auditors' remuneration

fees 2,501,277 2,732,245

35. Contracted services

Specialist Services 10,719,491 8,259,012

Other Contractors 14,057,724 11,994,349
24,777,215 20,253,361

36. Grants and subsidies paid

Other subsidies

Low house-hold subsidies 28,084,461 23,537,539

Grants to organisations 369,680 82,000
28,454,141 23,619,539

37. Bulk purchases

Electricity 126,669,077 101,683,452
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38. Cash generated from operations
{Deficit) surplus {73,705,394) 9,735,218
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 100,668,631 103,346,664
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment {2,256,088) {13,170,653)
Fair value adjustments 8,729,753  (22,425,882)
Finance costs - Finance leases 58,008 -
Impairment deficit 3,111,158 3,430,555
Debt impairment (190,129) 4,805,546
Movements in operating iease assets and accruals 39,613 15,308
Movements in retirement benefit obligation 10,068,000 6,850,000
Movements in provisions 4,697,260 14,734,993
Movement in housing development fund 7,306 (5,882)
Changes in working capital:
inventories 44,761,193  (39,498,102)
Receivables from exchange transactions (6,905,496) (715,964)
Other receivables from non-exchange fransactions 12,448,504 6,811,104
Consumer debtors (5,707,973) (14,648,903)
Payables from exchange transactions (8,953,399) 1,245,088
VAT 14,109,787 (2,043,157)
Unspent conditional grants and receipts (1,979,704} 8,032,935
Consumer deposits 12,843,534 4,469,411
111,844,565 70,968,289
39. Commitments
Authorised capital expenditure
Contracts entered into
’ Property, plant and equipment 20,302,159 14,638,065
Contracts not initiated, but budget approved by council
. Property, plant and equipment 169,043,235 213,971,000
Operating leases - as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year 78,540 264,747
- in second to fifth year inclusive 65,450 143,990
143,990 408,737

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the municipality for its office equipment. Leases are negotiated for an

average term of 3 years and rentals are fixed for the lease term. No contingent rent is payable.

Operating leases - as lessor {income)

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 393,989 362,110
- in second to fifth year inclusive 919,494 1,220,464
- later than five years 2,358,626 2,451,645

3,672,109 4,034,219

Dedicated municipal property is held to generate rental income. Lease agreements are non-canceltable and have terms from 3

fo 99 years, There are no contingent rents receivable.
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40. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities

SALA Pension Fund

SALA unilaterally decided to increase the employer's contribution to the said fund from 18,75% to 20,78% in 2003. A claim was
instituted by the South African Local Authorities Pension Fund (SALA) in the Magistrate's Court for the district of Hermanus for
the non-payment of increased contributions from July 2003 amounting to R136,598 plus interest at the prescribed rate from 30
September 2010.

Marius Kleynhans et. al vs Overstrand Municipality

The applicant filed a Notice of Moticon in the Western Cape High Court requesting that:

The Municipality be ordered to ensure that the Fernkloof Estate is fully protected by electrified fencing that is designed to
prevent unauthorised access {o the estate.

This matter was not brought as an urgent or semi urgent matter - it is thus foreseen that, should the matter proceed, the court
date will only be towards the late third quarter of the current financial year. Municipality's exposure is approximately
R5,500,000.

Cape Joint Pension Fund

On 30 June 2009 Cape Joint Pension Fund realised a rate of interest of less that 5.5% on the total monies of the Fund. Rule
17(5) of the Fund state that local authorities associated with the Fund shall cover the shortfall in proportion to the contributions
paid by each local authority. At 30 June 2011 the claim made by the Cape Joint Pension Fund amounts to R1,385,757 plus
interest at the prescribed rate from 15 February 2010. Overstrand municipality together with a number of other municipalities
has instituted legal proceedings to oppose the claim.,

G Lamont et al. vs Overstrand Municipality

The applicant filed a Notice of Motion in the Western Cape High Court requesting that:
The Municipality be ordered to remove the dune sand in the street. Municipality's exposure is approximately R200,000.

Van der Werf vs Overstrand Municipality regarding erf 1069 De Kelders

A letter of demand was issued to the municipality regarding a right of way on municipal property. The matter is still out of court
and ongoing pending further negotiations. Municipality's exposure is approximately R150,000.

H Myburgh v the Minister of Police and two others

A Senior Official of the municipality was alleged to have assaulted a member of the public. The municipality was joined as a
third party respondent by the defendant being the Minister of Police. The claim is R600 000, however, Overstrand Municipality
has no financial exposure to this claim as it is covered in terms of the municipality's insurance portfolio.

De Mond Caravan Park

An eviction application has been filed on behalf of Council in the High Court on 01 August 2012 and has been met by a notice
of opposition on 30 August 2012 by the De Mond Caravan Park's body corporate..

The approximate maximum financial exposure in the case of an unfavourable finding against Council is an estimated
R50,000.
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40. Contingencies (continued)

Contingent assets

iNew Republic Bank

The municipality has an investment with New Republic Bank. The bank is under receivership since October 1999. Interest only
accrued untill 31 December 2007. There is no guarantee that the municipality will receive the full value of the investment.
During the 2008 financial year, a dividend of R0.45 on the original capital still outstanding has been received. This brings the
total payout {o 89% of the original investment.

Due to the fact that the majority of the debt still to be collected, by the receivers, involve some form of legal action, it is not
possible to determine a date as to when the liquidation process will be completed.

Management impaired this investment from R2 631 821 to Rnil in 2010/2011 financial year.

Overstrand Municipality vs Corptrain (Pty) Lid

The applicant filed a Notice of Motion in the Gauteng High Court requesting that:

Corptrain (Pty) Ltd return monies erroneously transfered to them. A warrant of execution against the property of Corptrain (Pty)

Ltd has been obtained. The exposure is approximately R176,250 plus interest at 13.5% from 4 August 2010.

41. Related parties

Relationships
Members of key management Refer to note 27.1 to 27.8 and 28

There were no other related party transactions during the financial year, except as listed above.
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42, Comparative figures

The information presented below are only the statement of financial performance and statement of financial position items that
have been affected by adjustments to comparative figures. The comparative figures have been adjusted for the following
reasons:

Accounting errors:

Accounting errors relating to prior periods have been identified during the 2011/2012 financial period. These errors include
mathematical errors ®, misapplication of accounting policies ', oversight or misinterpretation of facts 2 , and effects of fraud 2.

Changes in classification:
Changes in clasification were due to bringing items in line with Nationat Treasury's budget guidelines.

The correction of errors detailed below has the following impact on the global opening balances as at 01 July 2010:

Assets: Inventories 7,645,732 Liabilities: Trade and other payables 5,778,014
Other receivables 24,113 Provisions (8T) (1,127,970}
Investment property 700,000 Provisions (LT) (3,551,727}
PPE 10,626,200

Statement of financial Amount Accounting Changes in Restated amount

position previously errors classification accounting policy

reported

Current Assets

Inventories 2 3,792,644 47,773,899 - 51,566,543

Other receivables from non- 22,044,680 (1,124,246} - 20,920,434

exchange transactions 2

Consumer debtors ? 44 122,935 299,162 - 44,422,097

Non-Current Assets

Investment property 2 87,289,228 700,000 - 87,989,228

Property, plant and 3,013,250,239 11,101,304 - 3,024,360,543

equipment 2

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 2 (73,616,065) (7,256,953) - (80,873,018)

Provisions (8,120,646} 3,426,609 - (4,694,037}

Non-Current Liabilities

Provisions {48,468,665) 12,714,477 - (35,754,188)

Net assefs

Accumulated surplus {(2,497,044,508) (67,634,252) - {2,564,678,760)

Statement of financial

performance

Revenue

Property rates 2 129,025,049 (287,783) - 128,737,266

Service charges 2 354,358,469 (9,389,174) 7,862 344,977,157

Property rates - penalties 889,114 (35,743) - 853,371

imposed and collection charges 2

Rental income 2 6,445,458 86,327 - 6,531,785

Public contributions and 21,371,318 190,000 - 21,661,318

donations 2

Government grants 2 83,616,436 (1,146,847} - 82,469,589

Other income 2 17,084,955 (5,877} (7,862) 17,071,216

Expenditure

Empioyee costs ? {185,865,875) (1,466,942) - {187,332,817)

Depreciation and amortisation 2 {103,696,769) 350,105 - {103,346,664)

Repairs and maintenance (58,547,519) 308,057 248 {58,239,214)

Contracted services (20,411,582) 158,221 - (20,253,361)

General expenses 2 (176,806,565) 60,529,038 (248) (127,496,012)
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43. Risk management
Capital risk management

The municipality's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the municipality's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for member and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the municipality consists of debt, which includes the borrowings (excluding derivative financial liabilities)
disclosed in notes 16 and 15, cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 13, and equity as disclosed in the statement of
financial position,

Consistent with others in the industry, the municipality monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.

This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including 'current and non-
current borrowings' as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated
as 'equity’ as shown in the statement of financial position plus net debt.

There have been no changes to what the municipality manages as capital, the strategy for capital maintenance or externally
imposed capital requirements from the previous year.

Financial risk management

Due to the largely non-trading nature of activities and the way in which they are financed, municipalities are not exposed to the
degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing
risks that would be typical of listed companies fo which the 1AS's mainly apply. Generally, Financial assets and liabilities are
generated by day-to-day operational activities and are not held to manage the risks facing the municipality in undertaking its
activities.

The Finance directorate monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal policies and
procedures, These risks include interest rate risk and liguidity risk. Compliance with policies and procedures are reviewed by
the internal auditors on a continuous basis and annually by the external auditors. The municipality does not enter into or trade
with financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Internal audit, responsible for initiating a control framework and monitering and responding to potential risk, reports periodically
to the municipality’s audit committee, an independent body that monitors the effectiveness of the internal audit function.

Liquidity risk

The municipality’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The municipality manages
liquidity risk through an ongoeing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
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43. Risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest Rate Risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows associated with a financial instrument will
fluctuate in amount as a result of market interest changes.

Potential concentrations of interest rate risk consist mainly of variable rate deposit investments, long-term receivables,
consumer debtors, other debtors, bank and cash balances.

The municipality limits its counterparty exposures from its money market investrnent operations by only dealing with well
established financial institutions of high credit standing. No investment with a tenure exceeding twelve months shall be made
without consultation with the councillor responsible for financial matters.

Consumer debtors comprise of a large number of ratepayers, dispersed across different industries and geographical areas.
Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on the financial condition of these debtors. Consumer debtors are presented netof a
provision for impairment.

In the case of debtors whose accounts become in arrears, it is endeavoured to collect such accounts by "levying of penalty
charges”, "demand for payment", "restriction of services" and, as a last resort, "handed over for collection”, whichever
procedure is applicable in terms of Council's Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy.

Long-term Receivables and Other Debtors are individually evaluated annually at balance Sheet date for impairment or
discounting. A report on the various categories of debtors is drafted to substantiate such evaluation and subsequent
impairment / discounting, where applicable.

Interest rate risk for long term financial liabilities is managed by monitoring the relevant rate and fixing it when market
conditions indicate that it is favourable to do so.

Interest rate risk for trade and other payables is managed by ensuring that all payments are made within 30 days of receipt of
statement, as prescribed by the MFMA.

Cash flow interest rate risk

Financial instruments Average Total Due in less Due in one to Due in two to Due after five

30 June 2012 effective than a year two years five years years
interest rate

Fixed interest rate instruments 10.53 % 587,433,365 52,103,994 47,654,176 147,035,115 340,640,080

Variable interest rate 828% 10,116,946 1,564,422 1,473,633 3,878,516 3,200,375

instruments

Financial instruments

30 June 2011

Fixed interest rate instruments 10.72 % 337,150,524 30,864,895 28,592 631 77,705,771 199,987,226

Variable interest rate 9.44 % 159,193,934 10,562,034 10,607,335 31,278,731 106,745,833

instruments

Above tables detail the municiaplity's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date which the municipality
can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principle cash flows.
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43. Risk management {(continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis:
Financial assets:

if the average interest rate at a given date had been 100 basis points higher, with all other variables held constant, the fair
value impact on the Statement of Financial Performance would have been R179,284 (2011: R185,906) with the opposite effect
if the interest rate had been 100 basis points lower.

Financial liabilities:

If the average interest rate at a given date had been 100 basis points higher, with all other variables held constant, the fair
value impact on the Statement of Financial Performance would have been R75,882 (2011: R729,831) with the opposite effect if
the interest rate had been 100 basis points lower.

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The
municipality only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking info account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of
credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards. Credit guarantee
insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate.

Counter parties with external credit rating (Fitch's): 2012 2011
Other financial assets

F1 75,000,000 50,000,000
F3 5,691,303 1,261,697

Counter parties without external credit rating:
Trade and other receivables from exchange and non-exchange transactions

Group 2 13,968,634 7,185,483
Group 3 7,661,299 19,987,458
Consumer debtors

Group 1 17,070,192 13,389,400
Group 2 1,292,038 1,672,008
Group 3 1,763,055 3,224,594
Group 4 30,194,915 26,136,095
Long term receivables

Group 3 151,370 171,321

F1 = Highest credit quality. Indicates the strongest capacity for timely payment of financial commitments.
F2 = Good credit quality. A satisfactory capacity for timely payment of financial commitments.
F3 = Fair credit quality. The capacity for timely payment of financial commitments is adequate.

Group 1 = Speculative. Minimal capacity for timely payment of financial commitments, plus vulnerability to near term
adverse changes in the financial and economic conditions.

Group 2 = Fair credit quality. The capacity for timely payment of financlal commitments is adequate.
Group 3 = Geod credit quality. A satisfactory capacity for timely payment of financial commitments.

Group 4 = Highest credit quality. Indicates the strongest capacity for timely payment of financial commitments.
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44, Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 176,250 176,250

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 104,482 -

Recovered / written-off by council (77,682) -
203,050 176,250

Incident Disciplinary steps / criminal proceedings

Errohecus payment made to supplier (2010) Steps taken to recover funds. Refer {o note 40 for detail

Cashier shortages Certified as irrecoverable and written off

Plot clearing Certified as irrecoverable and written off

Stanford sewerage reficulation Certified as irrecoverable and written off

Study bursary debt Awaiting decision, insufficient information

MFMA course Resoclved to recover funds from the responsible official

45. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance 129,714 17,427
Awards to persons in the employment of the municipality - 44,863
Procuring goods and services without obtaining official deviations 43,662 67,424
Procuring goods and services without obtaining three quotations 42,951 -
Procuring goods and services without obtaining a valid tax clearance certificate 46,452 -
Procuring goods and services without foflowing any official procurement process 191,880 -
Approved in terms of the SCM policy (262,679) -

191,880 129,714

Expenditure was Incurred in contravention with the municipality's supply chain management policy.
frregular expenditure was approved in accordance with the SCM policy.

46. Actual operating expenditure versus budgeted operating expenditure

Refer to Appendix E{1} for the comparison of actual operating expenditure versus budgeted expenditure.
47. Actual capital expenditure versus budgeted capital expenditure

Refer to Appendix E(2) for the comparison of actual capital expenditure versus budgeted expenditure.
48. Deviation from supply chain management regulations

Paragraph 12(1){d)(i} of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management policy
must provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process.

Paragraph 36 of the same gazetie states that the accounting cfficer may dispense with the official procurement process in
certain circumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the
accounting officer and includes a note to the annual financial statements.

Refer to page 61 for the supply chain management deviations.
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49. Multi-employer retirement benefit information

Overstrand Municipality makes provision for post-retirement benefits to eligible councillors and employees, who belong to
different pension schemes.

One councillor belongs to the Pension Fund for Municipal Counciliors.
Employees belong to a variety of approved Pension and Provident Funds as described beiow.
These funds are governed by the Pension Funds Act and inciude both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes.

All of these afore-mentioned funds are muiti-employer plans and are subject to either a tri-annual, bi-annual or annual actuarial
valuation, details which are provided below.

The only obligation of the municipality with respect to the retirement benefit plans is to make the specified contributions. Where
councillors / employees leave the plans prior to full vesting of the contributions, the contributions payable by the municipality
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The total expense recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance of R34.1 million (2011: R27.7 million} represents
contributions payable to these plans by the municipality at rates specified in the rules of the plans. These contributions have
been expensed.

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES
Cape Joint Pension Fund:

The scheme is subject io an annual actuarial valuation. The last statutory valuation was performed as at 30 June 2011, The
scheme both operaies a Defined benefit and Defined contribution scheme

Defined Benefit Scheme:

The coniribution rate payable is under the defined benefit sections is 27%, 9% by the members and 18% by their councils. The
actuarial valuation report at 30 June 2011 disclosed an actuarial valuation amounting to R2 971 150 miliion, with a net
accumulated deficit of R58 935 million, with a funding level of 98.1%.

Defined Contribution Scheme:

The actuarial valuation report at 30 June 2011 indicated that the defined contribution scheme of the fund is in a sound financial
position, with a assets amounting to R 386 570 miltion, net investment reserve of R15 285 million and a funding level of
104.1%.

South African Local Authorities Pension Fund (SALA):

The scheme is subject to an annual actuarial valuation. The iast statutory valuation was performed as at 30 June 2011.

The statutory valuation performed as at 30 June 2011 revealed that the assets of the fund amounted to R8 015 (30 June 2010
R7 110,3) million, with funding leveis of 98,1% (30 June 2010: 95,9%) . The contribution rate paid by Councit (19,18%) is
sufficient to fund the benefits accruing from the fund in the future.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES

Cape Joint Retirement Fund:

The scheme is subject to an annual actuarial valuation. The last statutory valuation was performed as at 30 June 2011,

The statutory valuation performed as at 30 June 2011 revealed that the assets of the fund amounted to R9 830,837 (30 June
2010: R7 740,205) millien, with funding levels of 100,3% and 116,9% (30 June 2010: 99,9% and 100,3%) for the Share

Account and the Pensions Account respectively. The contribution rate paid by the members (7,50%) and the municipaiities
{19,50%) is sufficient to fund the benefits accruing from the fund in the future.
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49. Multi-employer retirement benefit information {continued)
Municipal Councillors Pension Fund:

The scheme is subject to an actuarial valuation every three years. The last statutory valuation was performed as at 30 June
2009. The latest interim valuation was performed as at 30 June 2010,

The interim valuation performed as at 30 June 2010 revealed that the assets of the fund amounted to R1 483, 786 381 (30
June 2009: R1 123. 672 020) miilion. The contribution rate paid by the members (13,75%) and the municipalities (15,00%) is
sufficient to fund the benefits accruing from the fund in the fuiure,

South African Municipal Workers Union Nationai Provident Fund:

The iast statutory valuation was performed as at 30 June 2005.

The statutory valuation performed as at 30 June 2005 revealed that the fund had a funding ratio of 100,0% (30 June 2002:
100,0%). The contribution rate paid by the members (not less than 5,00%) and Council (not less than 12,00%) is sufficient to
fund the benefits accruing from the fund in the future.

50. Distribution losses

2012 Electricity Water

Rand value 6,512,826 2,891,622
% loss 7.12 % 20.36 %
2011

Rand value 6,159,141 3,100,572
% loss 837 % 24.24 %

Water losses to the amount of R2,891,622 (20.36%) were incurred as a result of unmetered connections, aging pipeline
infrastructure, burst pipes, old reticulation networks and other leakages. Alien vegetation infestation in watercourses and
catchment areas are also a contributing factor,

Cost per kifolitre was calculated using the following basis:

The water treatment and raw water departments are used in calculating the cost per kilolitre. The following costs for each
department is used:

General expenses (exluding departmental charges), direct labour attributable to the purification of water, depreciation based on
the cost of attributabie infrastructure assets and all repair and maintenance.

The total of above expenditure is then divided by the total kilolitres of water purified during the year and this equais the cost per
kilolitre.

Electricity losses to the amount of R6,512,826 (7.12%) were incurred as a result of technical losses caused by the nature of
electricity and the manner of its distribution, via the network, status/condition and age of the network, weather conditions and
load on the systemn as well as non-technical losses such as theft and vandalism.

51. Awards to close family members of persons in the service of the state

Refer to page 74.

52, Awards to persons in service of the state

Refer to page 75.
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Appendix D
June 2012

Segmental Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2012

Prior Year Current Year
Actual Actual Surplus Actual Actual Surplus
Income  Expenditure [(Deficit) Income  Expenditure /(Deficit)
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand
Municipality
27,514,592 58,677,692 (31,163,100)Executive & Council/Mayor and Council 31,663,102 75,425,876 (43,872,774)
143,625,991 76,487,554 67,138,437 Finance & Admin/Finance 154,508,259 75,738,429 78,769,830
44,881,634 57,044,604 (12,162,970)Corporate Services 7,222,524 58,772,993 (51,550,469)
11,911,499 26,703,922 {14,792,423)Planning and Development/Economic 12,064,640 41,943,909 (29,879,269)
Development/Plan
1,735,627 25,860,749 (24,125,222)Comm. & Social/Libraries and archives 2,155,189 27,889,876 (25,734,687)
. 48,847,603 7,680,596 41,167,007 Housing 3,964,696 55,792,049 (51,827,353)
9,336,845 32,873,882 (23,537,037)Public Safety/Police 10,047,692 36,785,160 (26,737,468)
6,118,280 17,448,857 (11,330,577)Sport and Recreation 6,608,355 18,356,909 (11,748,554)
328,885 6,713,970 (6,385,085)Environmental Protection/Poliution 208,796 6,002,036 (5,703,240)
Control
53,541,475 43,146,788 10,394,687 Waste Water Management/Sewerage 79,356,833 48,376,297 30,980,536
37,077,577 51,444,521 (14,366,944)Waste Management 40,352,719 44,231,113  (3,878,394)
2,691,382 83,609,144 (80,817,762)Road Transport/Roads 3,862,822 85,307,856 (81,445,034)
76,311,561 71,265,727 5,045,834 Water/Water Distribution 111,833,872 83,850,807 27,983,065
189,002,763 171,364,926 17,727,837 Electricity /Electricity Distribution 236,595,038 209,555,158 27,039,880
653,015,614 730,222,932 (77,207,318) 700,424,537 868,028,468 (167,603,931)
Other charges
- (86,942,540) 86,942,540 - (93,898,540) 93,898,540
- {86,942,540) 86,942,540 - (93,808,540) 93,898,540
653,015,614 730,222,932 (77,207,318)Municipality 700,424,537 868,028,468 (167,603,931)
- (86,942,540) 86,942,540 Other charges - {93,898,540) 093,898,540
653,015,614 643,280,392 9,735,222 Total 700,424,537 774,129,928 (73,705,391)
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Appendix E(1)

June 2012
Actual versus Budget(Revenue and Expenditure) for the year ended 30 June
2012
Current year Current year
2012 2012
Act, Bal. Adjusted Variance Explanation of Significant Variances
budget greater than 10% versus Budget
Rand Rand Rand Var

Revenue
Property rates 136,510,901 136,617,680 (106,779} (0.1}
Service charges 405,669,978 408,697,950 (3,027,972) (0.7}
Property rates - penalties 995,095 918,000 77,095 8.4
imposed and collection
charges
Rental of facilities and 6,731,614 6,959,800 (228,186) (3.3)
equipment
Public contributions and 14,300,171 13,701,868 508,303 4.4
donations
Fines 5,278,097 6,581,380 (1,303,283) (19.8)
Licences and permits 1,786,476 1,751,000 35476 2.0
Government grants & 95,422,704 72,835,085 22,587,619 31.0
subsidies
Other income 24,074,616 24,038,190 36,426 0.2
Interest recefved - 4,271,487 2,605,700 1,665,787 63.9
investment

695,041,139 674,706,653 20,334,486 3.0
Expenses

Employee related costs

Remuneration of (6,717,244) (6,724,095}
councillors

Depreciation (100,668,631)(105,114,520)
Impairments (3,111,159) -
Finance costs (31,727,084) {31,965,006)
Debt impairment 190,129  {1,000,000)

Repairs and maintenance (64,844,769) (69,066,530)
Bulk purchases (126,669,077)(127,208,420)
Contracted Services (24,777,215) (26,571,673)
Grants and subsidies paid (28,454,141) (33,875,000)
General Expenses

{207,938,262)(193,054,190) (14,884,072)

7.7
6,851 (0.1)
4445889 (4.2)
(3,111,159) -
237,022 (0.7}
1,190,129 '119.0)
4,221,761 (6.1)
539,343  (0.4)
1,794,458  (6.8)
5,420,859 (16.0)

(167,555,411)(132,824,741) (34,730,670) 26.1

(762,272,864)(727,404,175) (34,868,689)

Other revenue and costs

2,130,000

Gain or loss on disposal 2,256,088
of assets
Fair value adjustments (8,729,753)

4.8

126,088 5.8

8,500,000 (17,229,753)202.7)

{6,473,665) 10,630,000 (17,103,665)160.9)

Net surplus/ (deficit) for
the year

(73,705,390) (42,067,522) (31,637,868) 75.2

82



Appendix E(2)

June 2012

Budget Analysis of Capital Expenditure as at 30 June

2012
Additions Revised Variance Variance Explanation of significant
Budget variances from budget
Rand Rand Rand %

Municipality
Comm. and Social 12,352 21,212 8,860 42
Public Safety 645 1,091 446 41
Sport and Recreation 5,538 1,546 (3,992) (258)
Waste Water Management 39,927 33619  (6,308) {19)
Roads 5477 3,218 (2,259} {70)
Water/Water Distribution 57,384 71,859 14,475 20
Electricity /Electricity Distribution 30,061 28,921 (1,140} {4)
Corporate Services 11,714 24453 12,738 52
Waste management 196 270 74 27

163,204 186,189 22,895 12
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ANNEXURE B: REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL



REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE WESTERN CAPE PROVINCIAL
PARLIAMENT AND THE COUNCIL OF THE OVERSTRAND MUNICIPALITY

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1.

I have audited the financial statements of the Overstrand Municipality set out in Annexure A
on pages 2 to 84, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012,
the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and the cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2.

The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP), the requirements of the Local Government:
Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA) and the Division of
Revenue Act of South Africa, 2011 (Act No. 6 of 2011) (DoRA), and for such internal control
as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

3.

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.
I conducted my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004

(Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice issued in terms thereof and International
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

5.

In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Overstrand Municipality as at 30 June 2012 and its financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the
requirements of the MFMA and DoRA.



Emphasis of matters
6. | draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these
matters.

Restatement of corresponding figures

7. As disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for
30 June 2011 have been restated as a result of errors discovered during 2012 in the
financial statements of the Overstrand Municipality at, and for the year ended,
30 June 2011.

Material losses

8. As disclosed in note 50 to the financial statements, the municipality suffered a water loss of
R2 891 622 (20.36%). This is as a result of non-technical losses such as unmetered
connections and aging infrastructure and networks.

Material impairment
9. As disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements, consumer debtors were impaired by
R18 133 692 (26.5%) at the year-end.

10. As disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements, investment property was impaired by a
fair value adjustment of R8 729 753.

Additional matter
11. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules

12. As disclosed on page 1 of the financial statements, the supplementary information set out
on pages 76 to 84 does not form part of the financial statements and is presented as
additional information. | have not audited these schedules and accordingly | do not express
an opinion thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

13. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, | report the
following findings relevant to performance against predetermined objectives, compliance
with laws and regulations and internal control, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion.

Predetermined objectives

14. | performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the
information in the annual performance report as set out on pages 77 to 225 of the annual
report.

15. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the
overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual
performance report relates to whether it is presented in accordance with the National
Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is consistent
with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether
indicators and targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and
time bound) and relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework for managing
programme performance information.



16. The reliability of the information in respect of the selected programmes is assessed to
determine whether it adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and
complete).

17. There were no material findings on the annual performance report concerning the
usefulness and reliability of the information.

Compliance with laws and reqgulations

18. | performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws
and regulations regarding financial matters, financial management and other related
matters. My findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key applicable
laws and regulations, as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as
follows:

Annual financial statements, performance and annual report

19. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects
in accordance with the requirements of section 122 of the MFMA. Material misstatements
of non-current assets, provisions and disclosure items identified by the auditors in the
submitted financial statement were subsequently corrected, resulting in the financial
statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Asset management
20. An effective system of internal control for assets was not in place, as required by section
63(2)(c) of the MFMA.

Internal control

21. | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual
performance report and compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported below
under the fundamentals of internal control are limited to the significant deficiencies that
resulted in the findings on compliance with laws and regulations included in this report.

Leadership

22. Although the municipality developed an action plan it did not adequately address the
internal control deficiencies reported in the prior years because it only focused on findings
prevalent in the prior year management report and not the internal control deficiencies not
adequately addressed over the past few years resulting in repeat findings in the areas of
financial reporting relating to asset management and compliance with laws and
regulations.

Financial and performance management

23. Management did not put adequate processes in place to ensure that credible financial
statements in compliance with the reporting framework are prepared as the internal review
procedures were inadequate to identify and correct material misstatements in the financial
statements and underlying records before it being submitted for audit.



OTHER REPORTS
Investigations

Investigations in progress

24. As reported in paragraph 16 of the prior year audit report, allegations were made of
irregular procurement of goods and / or services, including a possible conflict of interest at
Hermanus Waste Water Treatment Works and also the Water Purification Works. Two
companies regularly supplying quotations did not exist as all the contact information on
the quotations were fictitious. The investigation is still in progress.

Investigations completed during the financial year

25. The municipality completed an investigation into allegations of dishonest and fraudulent
misrepresentation made by a senior official to have fines for traffic offences withdrawn or
reduced. Disciplinary action in this regard has been instituted by the municipality.

;ﬂ[m'-gw

Cape Town

30 November 2012
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A UDITOR-GENERAL
SOUTH A FRICA

Audliting to build public confidence



ANNEXURE C: REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE

AUDIT COMMITTEE




OVERSTRAND MUNICIPALITY

ANNUAL OVERSIGHT REPORT OF THE AUDIT- AND PERFORMANCE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

1. Introduction

The Audit and Performance Audit Committees are independent statutory committees
appointed by the Council in terms of section 166 of the Local Government: Municipal
Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003). We are please to present our
oversight report for the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

2. AUDIT COMMITTEE
2.1 Members

During the period from 01 July 2011 to 31 October 2011, the Committee consists of four
members none of whom are councilors or officials of the Municipality. The Committee
members are:

GN Lawrence (Chairperson)
DWJ Jacobs

JNP Saayman

ME Tshabalala

During the period from 01 November 2011 to 30 June 2012, the Committee consists of
five members none of whom are councilors or officials of the Municipality. The
Committee members are:

GN Lawrence (Chairperson)
DWJ Jacobs

HPA Beekman

HV Liebenberg

KE Montgomery

2.2 Meetings
The Committee met on the following dates during the year under review:

11 October 2011
28 October 2011
03 February 2012
11 May 2012

The Executive Mayor, Chairperson of the Finance & Economic Development Portfolio
Committee, Municipal Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Director: Management Services
and Manager: Internal Audit and officials, attend the meetings.

2.3 Role and responsibilities

The Committee was fully functional for the year under review and operated in
accordance with the adopted Audit Committee Charter, which was approved by Council.
The provisions contained in the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act,
2003 and Internal Audit Framework, which was developed by National Treasury, are
included in the Charter.

Page 1 of 4



OVERSTRAND MUNICIPALITY

ANNUAL OVERSIGHT REPORT OF THE AUDIT- AND PERFORMANCE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

The Committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year under review, as set

out in section 166 of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003. (Refer to point 4

below.)

3.  Reports Reviewed and System of internal controls

The Committee has reviewed the following reports for the period under review:

3.1 Bank Reconciliations

3.2 Administration of Municipal Residences.

3.3 Administration of Study Bursaries

3.4 Housing Consumer Education 2010/11

3.5 Local Labour Promotion Programme (LLPP)

3.6 Ad-Hoc Audit Request: Application for deviation — payment for the provision of
professional services

3.7 Follow-up Audit — Hawkers / Market stalls

3.8 Extension of Tenders

The committee wants to record its pleasure at the improved standard and professional
formatting of reports submitted to it during the course of the financial year. This
achievement is noteworthy given the fact that for the major portion of the year under
review the Internal Audit staff complement was not at full strength. This situation was
also negatively impacted upon by a rigorous programme of training requirements which
caused the existing staff to be away from their normal duties.

4.  Financial Statements and Accounting Practices

Regretably, once again, as reported in last years oversight report, the Annual Financial
Statements were not timeously presented to the Audit Committee (31 August 2012 i.e.
submission cut-off date to the Auditor-General). The Audit Committee was therefore not
able to fully comply with its mandate of having to review and provide Council with a
credible view of the financial statements. In fact, a formal request from the Audit
Committee at an Audit Steering Committee meeting held on 06 September 2012 was
necessary to solicit copies of the required documentation for scrutiny and study by the
Audit Committee members. Whilst this aspect may be the subject of ongoing discussions
and differing interpretations the Auditor-General shares the view of the Audit Committee
that prior review is favourable. This matter consequently remains a matter of concern to
the Audit Committee.

5. Report of the Auditor-General for 2011/2012

The report of the Auditor-General is noted.

6. Specific issues that need attention

There were no specific issues that needed further attention from the Audit Committee.

Page 2 of 4



OVERSTRAND MUNICIPALITY

ANNUAL OVERSIGHT REPORT OF THE AUDIT- AND PERFORMANCE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

7. PERFORMANCE AUDIT COMMITTEE
7.1 Members

The Performance Audit Committee consists of the same members as that of the Audit
Committee except that there is a different Chairperson, namely DWJ Jacobs. The
Chairperson is also the Chairperson of the Rewards and Recognition Committee of the

Municipality.
7.2 Meetings
The Committee met on the following dates during the year under review:

o 07 September 2011
o 02 March 2012
o 22 June 2012

The Executive Mayor, Chairperson of the Management Services Portfolio Committee,
Municipal Manager, Director: Management Services and Managers: Strategic Services
and Internal Audit and officials, attend the meetings.

7.3 Role and responsibilities

The Committee was fully functional for the year under review and operated in
accordance with the Local Government: Municipal Planning and Performance
Management Regulations, 2001.

8. Reports Reviewed
The Committee has reviewed the following reports for the period under review:

8.1 Follow-up report on Predetermined Objectives 3™ Quarter — Financial period
2010/2011.

8.2 Predetermined Objectives 4" Quarter — Financial period 2010/2011

8.3 Predetermined Objectives combined quarterly report: 1% & 2" Quarter — Financial
period 2011/2012.

8.4 Predetermined Objectives quarterly report: Quarter 3 — Financial period 2011/2012
Based on the processes and assurances obtained from management, Internal Audit and
Auditor-General, the Committee is satisfied that the performance management
processes and the reporting thereof are adequate.

The Committee further notes that the concern expressed by the Auditor-General in the
previous report regarding the non alignment of the KPI's and SDBIP has been resolved.

9 Report of the Auditor-General for 2011/2012
The Performance Audit Committee has noted a clean audit result in this matter.
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OVERSTRAND MUNICIPALITY

ANNUAL OVERSIGHT REPORT OF THE AUDIT- AND PERFORMANCE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

10 CONCLUSION

The Audit Committees have continued to enjoy the full co-operation of the Executive
Mayor as well as the Municipal Manager. However, the same level of relationship
previously enjoyed between the staff of the Auditor-General and various municipal
officials has at times become strained. This was an aspect that |, as Chairman devoted a
considerable time and effort to during the proceeding years that | have been Chairman.
It now appears that the renewed effort at improving interpersonal relationships between
the various role players is again warranted. Cognisance has been taken of the fact that a
specific meeting has had to be scheduled to address this problem. The Audit
Committees likewise will also engage in this matter.

It should be noted that the Internal Audit department did valuable work and the
Committees relied heavily on their inputs and effort.

@ e s

Wi
Gwence J{)f £6bs
Chairperson: afrper\ n:
Audit Committee Performance Audit Committee
/S/5o0/3 /53 /3
DATE DATE/ /
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ANNEXURE D: OVERSTRAND MUNICIPALITY WATER SERVICES

AUDIT FOR 2011712 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY




WorleyParsons EcoNomics

resources & energy

OVERSTRAND MUNICIPALITY
WATER SERVICES AUDIT FOR 2011/2012

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Section 62 of the Water Services Act requires the Minister to monitor every WSI in order to ensure compliance
with the prescribed national standards. This regulation requires a WSA to complete and submit a water
services audit every year.

The water services audit is designed to monitor the compliance of the WSA and other WSIs with these
regulations. It allows the water services audit to be used as a tool to compare actual performance of the WSA
against the targets and indicators set in their WSDP. It also assists local communities and DWA to assess
how well WSAs are performing relative to their stated intentions and their capacity.

The Water Services Audit Report will give an overview of the implementation of the previous years’ WSDP of
Overstrand Municipality and can be seen as an annexure to Overstrand Municipality’s Annual Report. The
Annual Report is compiled as required by the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, Act no 32 of 2000
(Section 46) and the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, Act no 56 of 2003 (Section 121).

Methodology followed: The Service Delivery Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) of Overstrand Municipality
for 2011/2012 was used to report on the KPIs for water and sewerage services. The previous WSDP was
further used as basis to compile the report. The latest water usage figures and WWTWSs flows up to June
2012 were obtained from Overstrand Municipality, analysed and included under the various sections of the
Water Services Audit Report.

Availability of the Water Services Audit Report: The Water Services Audit Report is a public document and
must be made available within four months after the end of each financial year and must be available for
inspection at the offices of the Municipality. It is also recommended that the document be placed on the
Municipality’s website and that copies of the document be placed at the public libraries. The draft document
was also made available to DWA for their comments as required by legislation.

The Water Services Audit Report contains the following detail information:

e The KPIs performance for 2011/2012, for water and sewerage services, as included in the SDBIP of
Overstrand Municipality.

e  Overstrand Municipality’s performance with regard to the KPIs as included in the Strategic Framework for
Water Services and DWA’s Water Services Regulation Strategy for Institutional Effectiveness (DWA'’s
Regulatory Performance Management System for Cost Effective Tariffs and Contract Management).

e  Overstrand Municipality’s Performance with regard to DWA'’s Blue and Green Drop Assessments. Blue
Drop status is awarded to those towns that comply with 95% criteria on drinking water quality
management. Green Drop status is awarded to those WWTWs that comply with 90% criteria on waste
water quality management.

e DWA’s Scorecard for assessing the potential for WC/WDM efforts in Overstrand Municipality.

e [nformation to be included in a Water Services Audit as stipulated in regulations under section 9 of the
Water Services Act, “Guidelines for Compulsory National Standards”.

e [nformation on the implementation of the various WSDP activities, as included under the thirteen WSDP
Business Elements in the DWA’s new WSDP guidelines (October 2010).

2012-11-30/Water Services Audit 2011-2012.doc/JH
X



WorleyParsons EcoNomics
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Overstrand Municipality has a comprehensive Performance Management System in place. The SDBIP is the
process plan and performance indicator / evaluation for the execution of the budget. The SDBIP is being used
as a management, implementation and monitoring tool that assists and guide the Executive Mayor,
Councillors, Municipal Manager, Senior Managers and the community. The plan serves as an input to the
performance agreements of the Municipal Manager and Directors. It also forms the basis for the monthly,
quarterly, mid-year and the annual assessment report and performance assessments of the Municipal
Manager and Directors.

The following water and sanitation related investigations were successfully completed during the last financial
year.

=  The Water Services Audit Report for 2010/2011 was finalised and taken to Council with the Municipality’s
Annual Report for 2010/2011. The non-revenue water balance models were updated for each of the
distribution systems as part of the Water Services Audit Report.

= Qverstrand Municipality updated their WSDP for the 2012/2013 financial year, according to DWA'’s latest
WSDP guidelines. The updated WSDP was approved by the Executive Mayoral Committee on the 30" of
May 2012.

= The Water and Sewer Master Plans for the various distribution and drainage systems were updated by
GLS. GLS Consulting provides an extensive specialist service related to the optimal analysis, planning
and management of water distribution and sewer reticulation systems. The Master Plans were also
worked through with the personnel of the Directorate Infrastructure and Planning.

=  The Municipality completed the updating of the technical reports and RBIG Implementation Ready Study
Reports for the upgrading of the Preekstoel WTW and the Hermanus WWTW.

=  The existing water and sewer asset registers were updated during the last financial year.

= The Municipality submitted an application for funding to the Provincial Department of Disaster
Management.

= Licence applications were submitted to the DWA for the groundwater development in Stanford and Hemel
and Aarde Valley (Hermanus).

= Qverstrand Municipality continues with the implementation of their Drinking Water Quality and Effluent
Quality Sampling Programmes (Both Operational and Compliance Monitoring). Overstrand Municipality
further also continues with their groundwater monitoring programme for the Stanford and the Hermanus
well-fields.

= A W,RAP was compiled for all the WWTWs in Overstrand Municipality’s Management Area. The W,RAP
is an all-inclusive risk analysis tool by which risks associated with the management and collection,
treatment and disposal of wastewater, are identified and rated (quantified).

=  Detail Process Audits were carried out at all the WTWs, as required by DWA'’s Blue Drop process.
= Overstrand Municipality continues with the monitoring of the Minimum Night Flows at various locations in

order to identify the areas with unrealistic high night flows. The telemetry system is used to monitor the
flows in the different areas.
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The following awards / acknowledgements were also received by the Municipality:

e Overstrand Municipality is performing very well with regard to drinking water quality management, to the
extent where the Greater Hermanus -, Buffels River -, Kleinmond -, Greater Gansbaai - and the Pearly
Beach distribution system were all awarded Blue drop status (> 95%) by the DWA during their 2012
assessment. The Municipality also received Blue Drop Scores of 92.73% for the Stanford Oog
distribution system, 93.81% for the Buffeliags Bay distribution system and 91.57% for the
Baardskeerdersbos distribution system. The Municipality’s overall Blue Drop Score was 96.82% and
the Municipality was 5" on the 2012 Blue Drop Provincial Performance Log for the Western Cape,
and in 12" position on the National Performance Log.

e Overstrand Municipality is also performing very well with regard to wastewater quality management, to the
extent where the Hermanus drainage systems was awarded Green drop status by the DWA for their 2011
assessment. The Municipality also received Green Drop Scores of 87.9% for the Hawston drainage
system, 83.0% for the Stanford drainage system, 82.5% for the Kleinmond drainage system and 75.8%
for the Gansbaai drainage system. The Municipality’s overall Green Drop Score was 88.8% for DWA’s
2011 assessment and the Municipality was ranked o' place nationally in the DWA’s 2011 Green
Drop Performance Log.

e DWA’s 2012 RPMS Report (Municipal Water Services Performance Assessment Report) reported that
Overstrand Municipality has done very well across all measurable indicators with the exception of water
use efficiency. Particular recognition is given to strong performance on asset and financial management.
Overall sound performance across the business is indicative of good capacity within the WSA and
provides a positive outlook on the future sustainability of water services. The Municipality is applaud for
good management.

e Overstrand Municipality received the WISA award for the best small WTW, for the new Franskraal WTW,
during the WISA awards ceremony in Cape Town.

e Overstrand Municipality was also one of the runners-up for the Wilson Awards (Hermanus WWTW).
e 100% MIG expenditure for the 2011/2012 financial year from the DLG.

Demographics

The 2001 Census recorded the population in the Overstrand. Municipality’s Management Area at 55 770
(19 082 Households) and the 2007 Community Survey recorded the 2007 population at 74 574 (21 953
Households). The 2011 Census data recorded the population at 80 432 (28 010 Households).

Service Levels

The current residential water and sanitation service levels in Overstrand Municipality's Management Area are
as follows (Consumer Units):

°
c
o
£

=

2

X

Greater
Hermanus
Greater
Gansbaai
Baardskeer
-dersbos
Buffeljags

WATER SERVICE LEVELS

Basic Need (RDP) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 199 199

Communal Services 0 382 1362 114 1578 0 0 0 0 3436

Adequate 3 051 2971 13 306 1072 4175 1088 57 33 1542 27 295
FATION SERVICE LE

Basic Need (RDP) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 389 389

Communal Services 0 382 1362 114 1578 0 0 0 0 3436

Adequate 3 051 2971 13 306 1072 4175 1088 57 33 1352 27 105
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The total number of households with access to communal services in the informal areas is 3 436.

All the households in the urban areas of Overstrand Municipality’s Management Area are provided with water
connections inside the houses. Informal areas are supplied with shared services as an intermediary measure.
Overstrand Municipality is committed to ensure that private landowners provide at least basic water and
sanitation services to those households in the rural areas with existing services below RDP standard.

Overstrand Municipality’s challenges with regard to the provision of basic water and sanitation services are as
follows:

e To provide basic water and sanitation services in the informal areas to new citizens moving into the
informal areas and to ensure that health and hygiene awareness and education is part of the process of
providing basic services.

e To identify suitable land for the relocation of the people from informal areas, with existing communal
services, to formal houses with a higher level of water and sanitation service (Services inside the house).

e To identify adequate funding for the rehabilitation, maintenance, replacement and upgrading of the
existing bulk and reticulation infrastructure in order to support the sustainability of the water and sanitation
services.

e To monitor the provision of basic water and sanitation on privately owned land.
e  To develop additional water sources to serve all communities sustainably for the future.
Socio Economic

Social: Overstrand Municipality plays a key role in the early childhood development of the children through
various projects. The Municipality also acknowledges its role in the lives of the youth and in support of the
aged, by supporting projects and capacity building initiatives of various Non-Governmental Organisations
(NGO’s) and Community Based Organisations (CBO’s).

The Enlighten Education Trust, an Overstrand based non-governmental organization, is facilitating the Junior
Council as an educational project on behalf of the Overstrand Municipality. These learners are also exposed
to leadership camps where leadership qualities are strengthened. The Municipality has entered into a
partnership with the Fund to establish a Youth Advisory Centre (YAC) to assist young people to gain access to
resources including entrepreneurial opportunities. Through this programme the youth will be well prepared to
take advantage of services and resources available to them to improve their livelihoods.

The Local Labour Promotion Project (LLPP) of the Overstrand Municipality was initiated with the view to
reduce outstanding municipal debt and provides income opportunities to communities with high unemployment
and poverty levels. This is achieved by allowing the unemployed, those who are in service payment arrears
and other needy groups within the communities to be part of the delivery of municipal services and the
construction of new public facilities.

Housing: A Housing Strategy is in place and the main vision of the Strategy is to not only eradicate the
current housing backlog, but to develop and plan for future integrated communities and settlements that would
be able to sustain the growing needs for housing in such a way that all people will benefit from the housing
developments.

A detailed action plan has been set in place to reduce the backlog and address the current and future housing
need. This Housing Strategy Five-Year Plan will incorporate several housing programmes, each focused on
and addressing different needs. The Overstrand Municipality has compiled a comprehensive Five Year
Human Settlement Strategy to guide and improve housing development and is specifically focussed on
delivery within the Municipality. The current housing backlog of Overstrand Municipality is for 6218
households.
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Health: The health profile in relation to treated water is good. Within the urban context, drinking water
throughout the municipal area is considered to be of a high quality.

Economics: A LED Strategy for Overstrand Municipality is in place. The Overstrand economy has improved
over the last few years and has experienced significant growth within specific sectors, which is assisted with
job creation. Tourism growth indicated positive signs, with growth in the number of visitors and attendance in
locally organize events such as festivals.

Infrastructure

The CRC, DRC, RUL and Age distribution of the water and sewer infrastructure in Overstrand Municipality’s
Management Area is summarised in the table below (June 2012):

Asset Type CRC ‘ DRC % CRC / DRC
Water Infrastructure R1 237213 136 R338 249 314 27.3
Sewer Infrastructure R 638 401 508 R 323 609 955 50.7
Asset Type 10-15yrs
Water Infrastructure R 237 262 735 R 536 366 299 R 81 197 690 R 40 096 858 | R 342289 558
Sewer Infrastructure R 199 854 088 R 24 497 859 R 45 453 100 R 4818660 | R 363777 801
Age Distribution
Asset Type 5-10yrs 10-15yrs
Water Infrastructure R 136 778 303 R 52 121 767 R 86 961 332 R 57 711 261 R 903 640 473
Sewer Infrastructure R 55 579 515 R 24 132279 R 103 781 966 R 267 276 948 | R 187 630 800

The above table means that 72.7% of the water infrastructure and 49.3% of the sewer infrastructure has been
consumed.

One of the key challenges of Overstrand Municipality is to identify adequate funds for the rehabilitation and
maintenance of the existing infrastructure, which is critical to ensure the sustainability of the services that are
provided by the Municipality. It is also important for the Municipality to secure adequate funding for the
provision of bulk infrastructure and development of additional sources to keep up with the high demand for
services.

Operation and Maintenance

The DWA launched the blue and green drop certification, with regard to drinking water quality and wastewater
quality management, at the Municipal Indaba during September 2008. Blue drop status is awarded to those
towns that comply with 95% criteria on drinking water quality management. The Blue Drop Certification
programme is in its fourth year of existence and promises to be the catalyst for sustainable improvement of
South African drinking water quality management in its entirety. Overstrand Municipality received Blue Drop
Status for five of their eight distribution systems and the Municipality’s overall Blue Drop Score was 96.82%.

The DWA also completed their Second Order Assessment of Municipal Waste Water Treatment Plants,
DWA'’s Green Drop Report for 2011, which provides a scientific and verifiable status of municipal waste water
treatment. Green drop status is awarded to those WSAs that comply with 90% criteria on wastewater quality
management. Overstrand Municipality’s Green Drop Score for the 2011 Assessment was 88.8%.
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The percentage compliance of the water quality samples taken over the period July 2011 to June 2012 for the
various distribution systems are summarised in the table below.

Risk assessment

Distribution System ‘e Health =1 g nic Health Aesthetic defined Health OEP%’c"igg'c’;'
(Acute or Chronic)
Buffels River 100% 100% 100% 100% 98.3%
Kleinmond 100% 100% 100% 100% 94.4%
Greater Hermanus 97.8% 99.6% 99.1% 99.2% 90.5%
Stanford 100% 100% 100% 100% 96.2%
Greater Gansbaai 100% 100% 98.8% 100% 97.0%
Pearly Beach 100% 100% 91.2% 100% 98.7%
Baardskeerdersbos 92.3% 100% 78.4% 97.6% 81.8%
Buffeljags Bay 100% 100% 100% 100% 95.6%

The overall percentage compliance of the final effluent samples taken over the period July 2011 to June 2012
at the various WWTWs is summarised in the table below.

WWTW Microbiological Chemical Physical
Kleinmond 83.3% 80.0% 100.0%
Hawston 91.7% 85.0% 91.7%
Hermanus 91.7% 90.0% 66.7%
Stanford 91.7% 90.0% 94.4%
Gansbaai 100.0% 95.0% 80.6%

Associated Services

All the schools and medical facilities in Overstrand Municipality’s Management Area are supplied with
adequate water and sanitation services.

Conservation and Demand Management

The implementation of a Water Demand Management Strategy by Overstrand Municipality has been extremely
successful and has reduced the water demand of the towns significantly. The overall percentage of non-
revenue water for Overstrand Municipality for the 2011/2012 financial year was calculated as 25.47%. The
table below gives a summary of the non-revenue water for the various distribution systems in Overstrand.
Municipality’s Management Area.

Record : Prior (Ml/a)

Description
09/10 08/09 07/08 06/07
Volume 511.481 658.378 740.533 738.977 715.850 615.698
Buffels River Percentage 57.5% 62.1% 63.6% 62.1% 60.9% 58.3%
ILI 5.07 5.06 6.69
Volume 351.903 272.814 341.031 302.473 296.338 229.620
Kleinmond Percentage 38.7% 31.5% 36.4% 31.7% 30.7% 25.4%
ILI 2.58 217 4.09
Volume 317.241 594.352 593.867 805.122 311.620 734.043
Greater Hermanus Percentage 9.7% 15.6% 13.3% 16.6% 7.9% 17.2%
ILI 0.98 1.50 2.22
Volume 142.029 128.297 194.486 163.496 123.058 140.626
Stanford Percentage 37.5% 35.5% 41.6% 36.4% 30.9% 34.1%
ILI 5.90 5.67 11.08
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Record : Prior (Ml/a)

Description Unit
09/10 08/09 07/08 06/07
Volume 393.299 423.030 365.547 492.048 482.079 194.253
Greater Gansbaai Percentage 29.8% 31.1% 26.8% 33.3% 31.3% 14.8%
ILI 3.46 3.7 2.07
Volume 45.689 36.511 21.683 27.326 34.163 24.281
Pearly Beach Percentage 32.3% 26.3% 19.7% 21.6% 25.7% 19.7%
ILI 3.02 2.41 3.20
Volume 2.778 4.085 2.722 4915 2.869 6.692
Baardskeerdersbos
Percentage 29.3% 37.3% 25.9% 39.4% 31.3% 52.3%
) Volume 0.019 0 0 0.112 0.360 0.453
Buffeljags Bay
Percentage 0.5% 0% 0% 4.4% 12.3% 11.8%
Volume 1764.439 | 2117.467 | 2 259.869 2534.469 | 1966.337 | 1945.666
TOTAL Percentage 25.5% 27.9% 26.5% 28.0% 24.1% 24.0%
ILI 2.02 2.33 2.94

Note: Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) for Developed Countries = 1 — 2 Excellent (Category A), 2 — 4 Good (Category B), 4 — 8 Poor
(Category C) and > 8 — Very Bad (Category D)

Category A = No specific intervention required.
Category B = No urgent action required although should be monitored carefully.
Category C = Requires attention

Category D = Requires immediate water loss reduction interventions

Water Resources

The table below gives an overview of the years in which the annual water demand will exceed the sustainable
yield from the various resources, as included in the 2012/2013 WSDP.

Annual Growth on Annual Growth on

Distribution System -{((i);?c: ?::B%":};:; 2010 Demand 2010 Demand WSDF;VIZ:’;EC“M
(3% or 4%) (5% or 6%)

Buffels River 1.717 2026 (3%) 2020 (5%) 2026
Kleinmond 2.589 > 2035 (3%) 2032 (5%) > 2035
Greater Hermanus 6.012* 2020 (4%) 2017 (6%) 2020
Stanford 1.950 > 2035 (3%) > 2035 (5%) > 2035
Greater Gansbaai 2.935 2029 (4%) 2023 (6%) 2025
Pearly Beach 0.307 > 2035 (3%) 2026 (5%) 2026
Baardskeerdersbos ** 0.090 > 2035 (3%) > 2035 (5%) > 2035
Buffeljags Bay 0.013 > 2035 (3%) > 2035 (5%) > 2035

Note *  With Gateway, Camphill and Volmoed Well Fields fully operational
**  With development of new borehole during 2012/2013

Buffels River and Kleinmond Areas: Overstrand Municipality completed a detail investigation during
2010/2011 of the water resources for the area from Rooi Els to Kleinmond and the recommendations from the
Study will be implemented.
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Greater Hermanus Area: The Gateway, Camphill and Volmoed wellfields are being developed by Overstrand
Municipality as additional groundwater resources for the greater Hermanus Area. The Gateway boreholes are
in production and the Municipality keep on implementing their Groundwater Monitoring Programme for all the
wellfields. The Municipality is also busy with the construction of a new pipeline from the Camphill and Volmoed
boreholes to the Preekstoel WTWs.

A detail feasibility study was also completed during the 2010/2011 financial year for the re-use of treated
effluent from the Hermanus WWTWs. The Municipality will also start investigating various desalination
options in future.

Stanford: The Municipality explored the groundwater potential of the Kouevlakte area since 2009, through
exploration borehole siting and drilling. Two newly drilled boreholes were put into operation and new bulk
supply pipelines were constructed in order to connect the two newly drilled boreholes to the existing water
reticulation network. Irrigation of sports fields with treated WWTW effluent is being investigated.

Greater Gansbaai: A new Nano Filtration Plant was constructed during the 2010/2011 financial year in order
to fully utilise the Klipgat and Grotte resources and improve the quality of the water.

Pearly Beach: Overstand Municipality is committed to manage the dam efficiently. Other resource options
include the extension of the existing groundwater supply system and the Kraaibosch scheme.

Baardskeerdersbos: A new borehole will be commissioned in the near future and the supply from the stream
and the new borehole will be adequate to meet the medium- and long-term future water requirements.

Buffeljags Bay: The current source is adequate to supply the medium- and long-term future water
requirements.

Water Quality: Overstrand Municipality actively implement their Operational and Compliance Water Quality
Sampling Programmes in order to promptly identify water quality failures and to react accordingly. The water
quality results are loaded onto DWA'’s Blue Drop System (BDS) via the internet. Once entered the data is
automatically compared to SANS:241. This real-time system allows for immediate intervention to rectify any
problems.

Up to present it was not necessary to take any steps to inform the consumers of any health risk regarding the
potable water supplied by Overstrand Municipality. The Municipality however has specific Safety Management
Procedures in place, to inform its consumers about any potential health risks regarding the water quality,
should it become necessary.

Financial

Overstrand Municipality’s Tariff Structures for water and sanitation services are summarised under Section 12
of the Report. The table below gives a summary of the operational budget for water and sanitation services for
the last four years.

Expenditure /

Service —— Actual 11/12 ‘ Actual 10/11 Audited 09/10  Audited 08/09 Audited 07/08
Expenditure R83 115 288-69 | R73 321 373-08 |R72 496 148-39 | R48 040 492-36 | R30 485 238-87
Water Income R104 938 998-48 | R79 588 700-02 |R74 598 682-45 | R66 998 742-40 | R43 820 070-79
Surplus / (Deficit) -R21 823 709-79 | -R6 267 326-94 |-R2 102 534-06 |-R18 958 250-04 | -R13 334 831-92
Expenditure R45 790 334-40 | R40 666 933-48 |R37 715839-36 | R25 170 345-76 | R25 091 607-04
Sanitation | Income R74 623 658-62 | R50911541-99 |R36 160 168-38 | R32 056 044-09 | R20 710 387-65
Surplus / (Deficit) -R28 833 324-22 | -R10 244 608-51 | R1 555 670-98 | -R6 885 698-33 R4 381 219-39
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Water Services Institutional Arrangements

Overstrand Municipality is the official WSA for the entire Municipal Management Area and act as the WSP for
the whole area. Overstrand Municipality's WSDP for the 2012/2013 financial year was approved by the
Mayoral Committee. A comprehensive set of Water Services By-laws are in place and is implemented. The
Water Services By-laws cover the provision of services for water supply, sanitation and industrial effluent.

Overstrand Municipality continues to undertake basic public awareness programmes. The education of users
where sanitation facilities are upgraded to waterborne systems is on-going. This is primarily focussed at
informing users of the appropriate use of and routine maintenance of such facilities.

The Municipal personnel is continuously exposed to training opportunities, skills development and capacity
building at a technical, operations and management level in an effort to create a more efficient overall service
to the users. A Workplace Skills Plan is compiled every year and the specific training needs of the personnel,
with regard to water and wastewater management are determined annually.

Overstrand Municipality will start a Section 78 (Phase 1) investigation in the next financial year (2012/2013) for
all their water and sewer infrastructure. Overstrand Municipality is currently effectively managing its water and
sanitation services. Urgent attention is however required to address the backlog in sanitation services, as well
as the backlog in infrastructure replacement, and forward planning of other services should be guided by the
Water and Sewer Master Plans.

Social and Customer Service Requirements

A comprehensive Customer Services and Complaints system is in place at Overstrand Municipality and the
Municipality has maintained a high and a very consistent level of service to its urban water consumers.

The Water Safety Plans of Overstrand Municipality includes an Improvement / Upgrade Plan. The purpose of
the Improvement / Upgrade Plan is to address the existing significant risks where the existing controls were
not effective or absent. Barriers implemented by Overstrand Municipality against contamination and
deteriorating water quality include the following:

o  Participate in Catchment management and water source protection initiatives.
o Protection at points of abstraction such as river intakes and dams (Abstraction Management).

o  Correct operation and maintenance of WTWs (Coagulation, flocculation, sedimentation and filtration). A
new Nano Filtration Plant was constructed at De Kelders Grotte.

o Protection and maintenance of the distribution system. This includes ensuring an adequate disinfectant
residual at all times, rapid response to pipe bursts and other leaks, regular cleaning of reservoirs, keeping
all delivery points tidy and clean, etc.

Three other important barriers implemented by Overstrand Municipality against poor quality drinking water that
are a prerequisite to those listed above are as follows:

« A well informed Council and municipal managers that understand the extreme importance of and are
committed to providing adequate resources for continuous professional operation and maintenance of the
water supply system.

o Competent managers and supervisors in the technical department who are responsible for water supply
services lead by example and are passionate about monitoring and safeguarding drinking water quality.

e« Well informed community members and other consumers of water supply services that have respect for
water as a precious resource.
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Projects completed

The list of water and sewer capital projects completed during the 2011/2012 financial year is included under
Section 15 of the Report. Overstrand Municipality’s capital budget expenditure, for the 2011/2012 financial
year, was R57.3 million (79.8% of Budget) for the water infrastructure projects and R26.0 million (89.5% of
Budget) for the sewer infrastructure projects.
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